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Corporate Profile
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Wing Hang Ngan Ho was first established in 1937 by the late Mr Y K Fung
in Guangzhou to carry on the business of a money changer. Its early years
were difficult due to the prevailing turbulent political and economical
conditions in China. In 1945 the company re-established in Hong Kong
with a capital of HK$300,000 and a staff of nineteen and prospered during
the post war boom. In 1960 Wing Hang Bank was incorporated and was
granted a banking licence reaching the first milestone in its future growth.

In 1973 the Irving Trust Company of New York acquired a majority interest
in the Bank and the partnership provided the Bank with a strong financial
base and the expertise of a major international bank. In 1979 the Head
Office Building was re-developed and provided much needed modern facilities
for its operations. In 1988 the Irving Trust Company merged with The
Bank of New York and became a stronger and more diversified partner.
In July 1993, the shares of Wing Hang Bank were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. In August 2004, the Bank completed the merger
with Chekiang First Bank, a local bank noted for its solid credit history
and high quality portfolio. This acquisition provided the Bank with a greater
scale and coverage in the market. In January 2007, the Bank acquired
Inchroy Credit Corporation Ltd., a major financial institution engaged in
the hire purchase and lease financing business. In July 2007, The Bank of
New York Company Inc. merged with Mellon Financial Corporation to
form The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, further increasing its
financial strength and standing in the market.

Wing Hang Bank is the holding company and the principal operating company
of the Group. It provides a comprehensive range of banking and related
financial services through a network of 42 branches in Hong Kong. Its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Wing Hang Bank (China), was established in
June 2007 with a network of branches in Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Shanghai
and Zhuhai. The Group’s subsidiary, Banco Weng Hang has been operating
in Macau since 1941 and has an extensive branch network in the territory.
In addition, through its other subsidiaries and affiliated companies the
Group provides nominee, deposit taking, offshore banking, hire purchase,
consumer financing, insurance and share brokerage services.

At the end of 2009, the Group’s total assets and shareholders’ funds
amounted to HK$147.1 billion and HK$12.5 billion respectively, net profit
attributable to shareholders for 2009 was HK$1,204.7 million.
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Group Results in Brief

#mn, Cad)
2009 2008 Increase/ 2009
BEEBT BEBHET (Decrease) EX-E
2EEE FOR THE YEAR HK$ million HK$ million %  US$ million
PR (L 2 im 7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,205 1,162 4% 155.38
f% 8 Dividends 207 313 (34%) 26.69
il poged EH
UERTE PER SHARE HK$ HK$ % uss
EREF Basic Earnings 4.08 3.94 4% 0.53
B R R EAAR S Interim and Final Dividends 0.70 1.06 (34%) 0.09
BEFE Net Asset Value 42.44 35.88 18% 5.47
BEEET BEHET EE-E3H
REKTE AT YEAR END HK$ million HK$ million %  US$ million
REE S Shareholders’ Funds 12,521 10,587 18% 1,614.6
AT Total Deposits 127,416 117,107 9% 16,430.0
EFER Advances to Customers 80,497 80,256 — 10,379.9
BEE Total Assets 147,124 134,400 9% 18,971.3
[aigp: RATIO % %
R BRI A L 2R Cost to Income Ratio 55.1 41.2
T EEDwRE Return on Average Assets 0.86 0.84
TR E S EIFRE Return on Average Shareholders’ Funds 10.6 10.8

1.00 7T = B 7.7551 0 US$7.00 = HKS7.7557
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Five-Year Group Financial Summary

BEEET HK$ million 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
BEE S Shareholders’ Funds 8,316 9,297 10,485 10,587 12,521
AT Total Deposits 91,201 107,475 120,096 117,107 127,416
EFER Advances to Customers 54,402 58,638 74,574 80,256 80,497
BEE Total Assets 104,323 122,151 139,657 134,400 147,124
EEWA Operating Income 2,621 2,937 3,292 3,785 2,853
BELH Operating Expenses 976 1,074 1,306 1,561 1,571
B SR A 2 F) Profit Attributable

to Shareholders 1,349 1,661 2,031 1,162 1,205
i8S Dividends 676 830 1,012 313 207
ol HK$
BRERZEF Basic Farnings per Share 4.59 5.65 6.89 3.94 4.08
SRPEBARKERE Interim and Final

Dividends per Share 2.30 2.82 3.43 1.06 0.70
5 S Ratio
Bt % Loan to Deposit Ratio 59.7 54.6 62.1 68.5 63.2
BEARF R E Capital Adequacy Ratio 14.9 15.2 16.7 15.4 17.8
FHRENE L Average Liquidity Ratio 50.8 51.6 50.4 441 53.6
PR AN ER U A L 2R Cost to Income Ratio 37.2 36.6 39.7 41.2 55.1
T E B B R Return on Average Assets 1.35 1.47 1.53 0.84 0.86
TR E S RIFRE Return on Average

Shareholders’ Funds 17.1 18.9 20.5 10.8 10.6

A KSRIT « 2009 FELR
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Corporate Information

BEEXg Board of Directors
EER Chairman
EEERIE TIP (7T AEE) Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick JP (Chief Executive)

HTES Executive Directors
TRERE (BI7TTHAEE) Mr Frank John WANG (Deputy Chief Executive)
TR It (BARABAETE) Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Senior General Manager)
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Non-executive Directors

Mr HO Chi Wai Louis

Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN

Mr Christopher Robert STURDY

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr CHENG Hon Kwan GBS, JP

Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose GBS, JP

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr TUNG Chee Chen

Executive Committee
Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick JP

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Audit Committee

Dr CHENG Hon Kwan GBS, JP
Mr Christopher Robert STURDY
Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Remuneration Committee
Dr CHENG Hon Kwan GBS, JP
Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose GBS, JP

Company Secretary
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

Auditors
KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Registered Office
161 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
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BEPREBSFELERAA
BEEET 2R RNER183%
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WA TEERIT

BNY MELLON Shareowner Services
PO Box 358516

Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516

E5E + 1-201-680-6825

EH : shrrelations@bnymellon.com

MOBERITREERE

Share Listing

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Share Registrars

Computershare Hong Kong In
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanc

vestor Services Limited
, Hopewell Centre
hai, Hong Kong

ADR Depositary Bank

The Bank of New York Mellon

BNY MELLON Shareowner Services

PO Box 358516
Pittsburgh, PA 15252-8516
Telephone: 1-201-680-6825

Email: shrrelations@bnymellon.com

Affiliated with the Bank of New York Mellon

Corporation
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick JP

Chairman & Chief Executive

Aged 62. Dr FUNG joined the Bank in 1976 and was appointed a Director
in 1980, Chief Executive in 1992, and Chairman in April 1996. He is a
member of the Executive Committee of the Bank and also the Chairman
of various subsidiaries and committees of the Bank. Dr FUNG is a non-
executive director of Miramar Hotel and Investment Company, Limited
and an independent non-executive director of The Link Management Limited,
the manager of The Link Real Estate Investment Trust. Miramar Hotel and
Investment Company, Limited and The Link Real Estate Investment Trust
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is a member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee
("EFAC") and the EFAC Financial Infrastructure Sub-Committee, a member
of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a member of the Court of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a council member of the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, the Vice President of the Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers and a member of the Board of Trustees of Lord Wilson Heritage
Trust.

Dr FUNG obtained his MBA Degree from the University of Toronto in
1973, and was awarded an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2001 and an Honorary Doctor
of Laws by the University of Toronto in 2005.

Dr FUNG is a son of the late Mr Y K FUNG, founder of the Bank.

Mr Frank John WANG

Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive

Aged 58. Mr WANG joined the Bank as Executive Director and Deputy
Chief Executive in June 1999. He is a member of the Executive Committee,
Credit Committee and Management Committee of the Bank and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Bank. Mr WANG was also a former member
of Deposit Taking Company Advisory Committee. He previously worked
with The Bank of New York Mellon and has extensive credit control
experience.

Mr WANG obtained his MBA Degree from the Cornell University in 1979.
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Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Executive Director & Senior General Manager

Aged 60. Mr FUNG joined the Bank in 1978 and was appointed Executive
Director in 1992. He is a member of the Executive Committee, Credit
Committee, Management Committee and a director of various subsidiaries
of the Bank. Mr FUNG was a former member of the Board of Trustees of
Shaw College, The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr FUNG obtained BA Degree from the Carleton University in Ottawa,
Canada.

Mr FUNG is a son of the late Mr Y K FUNG, founder of the Bank.

Mr HO Chi Wai Louis

Non-executive Director

Aged 73. Mr HO joined the Bank in 1972, was appointed Executive Director
in October 1995 and re-designated as Non-executive Director of the Bank
on 1st July, 2008. Before his re-designation as a Non-executive Director
of the Bank, Mr HO was the Company Secretary and a member of the
Management Committee and Credit Committee of the Bank.

Mr HO obtained an Engineering Degree from the McGill University in 1961.
Mr HO is presently an Honorary Adviser of The Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society.

Mr HO is the brother-in-law of Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick and Mr FUNG
Yuk Sing Michael.

Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN

Non-executive Director

Aged 52. Mr ROGAN joined the Board in January 2009. He is currently a
Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer of The Bank of New
York Mellon Corporation and its subsidiary, The Bank of New York Mellon.
Mr ROGAN also served on the board of directors of two subsidiary companies
of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation. Mr ROGAN started his
career with The Bank of New York in 1981. He has extensive experience
in the banking industry.

Mr ROGAN obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from the University
of Rochester, New York in 1979 and a Master Degree in Business
Administration from UCLA Anderson School of Management, Los Angeles,
California in 1988.

WING HANG BANK * Annual Report2009 9
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr Christopher Robert STURDY

Non-executive Director

Aged 51. Mr STURDY joined the Board in March 2009 and is a member of
the Audit Committee of the Bank. He is currently the Chairman of Asia
Pacific of The Bank of New York Mellon. Immediately prior to his current
employment in June 2008, he was the Global Head of Depositary Receipts
of The Bank of New York Mellon in New York. Mr STURDY has substantial
experience in the banking industry.

Mr STURDY obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Bachelor’s
Degree in Spanish from the Duke University, Durham, North Carolina in
1982.

Dr CHENG Hon Kwan GBS, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 82. Dr CHENG joined the Board in 1987. He is also the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Director Nomination Committee of the Bank. Dr CHENG is also an
independent non-executive director of Agile Property Holdings Limited,
Hang Lung Group Limited, Hang Lung Properties Limited and Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited. The above companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. Dr CHENG was former member of Executive and Legislative
Councils, and the former Chairman of Land and Building Advisory Committee,
Transport Advisory Committee, Hong Kong Housing Authority, Councils
of City University and Open University of Hong Kong.

Dr CHENG obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Engineering from the Tianjin
University and is a fellow of Imperial College London, an Honorary Fellow,
Gold Medallist and former President of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers. He is also Fellow and Gold Medallist of The Institution of Structural
Engineers.
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Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose GBS, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 62. Mr LAU joined the Board in 1996. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Chairman of the Director Nomination
Committee of the Bank. Mr LAU is an independent non-executive director
of Brightoil Petroleum (Holdings) Limited, Franshion Properties (China)
Limited, Glorious Sun Enterprises Limited, GZI Transport Limited, Qin Jia
Yuan Media Services Company Limited, The Hong Kong Parkview Group
Limited and Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as
Guangzhou Investment Company Limited). He was also an independent
non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited before his
resignation on 3rd March, 2008. The above companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr LAU obtained LLB Degree from the University of London. He is a solicitor
of the High Court of the HKSAR, a China-Appointed Attesting Officer
and a Notary Public and the Senior Partner of Messrs Chu and Lau, Solicitors
and Notaries.

Mr LAU was awarded “Gold Bauhinia Star” by the HKSAR Government in
2001. He is also a Standing Committee member of the National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 62. Mr TSE joined the Board in November 2004 and is a member of
the Audit Committee of the Bank. He is also the Supervisor of two subsidiaries
of the Bank incorporated in Macau and China. Mr TSE is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), a former president
and the current Chairman of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA. Mr TSE
joined KPMG in 1976 and became a partner in 1984 and retired in March
2003. Mr TSE was the non-executive chairman of KPMG'’s operations in
the PRC and a member of the KPMG China Advisory Board from 1997 to
2000. Mr TSE also serves as independent non-executive director in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong, including China Construction Bank
Corporation, China Telecom Corporation Limited, CNOOC Limited, Linmark
Group Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings Limited. He is
currently a member of the International Advisory Council of The People’s
Municipal Government of Wuhan.

Mr TSE is a graduate of the University of Hong Kong.

WING HANG BANK  Annual Report 2009 11
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr TUNG Chee Chen

Independent Non-executive Director

Aged 67. Mr TUNG joined the Board in January 2004. He is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Orient Overseas (International) Limited and
an independent non-executive director of a number of listed companies,
including BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited,
PetroChina Company Limited, Sing Tao News Corporation Limited, Zhejiang
Expressway Company Limited and U-Ming Marine Transport Corp.

Mr TUNG was educated at the University of Liverpool, United Kingdom,
where he obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Science in 1964. He later obtained
a Master’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology in 1966.
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Chairman’s Statement

JESEXRE 1+ )p Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick Jp
BERFITEAEEH Chairman & Chief Executive

R, FHRRESOHRE
Net Profit / Return on Average Shareholders' Funds

B EE T
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— TERERE S ERE

Return on Average Shareholders’ Funds

ElEEF A7 R B S EG T A8 12.047( T -
B2008% 2 /B H11.619(8 7T IN3.7% - B EF|H
N3.6%ZEHEHA408TL - EECTERBRERPBRESD
% & #0.507T » @R 2009F9 821 AR % 2 FF i
& BB 0.200T - FAALRFEFARAERK0.70
JL 820085 5 434.0% °

Group profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$1,204.7 million
for the year under review representing an increase of 3.7 percent compared
to HK$1,161.9 million in 2008. Earnings per share increased 3.6 percent
to HK$4.08. The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK$0.50
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.20 paid on 21st
September, 2009, the total distribution for the year amounts to HK$0.70
per share, a reduction of 34.0 percent compared to 2008.

WING HANG BANK ¢ Annual Report2009 13
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Chairman’s Statement
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The recovery in earnings reflected an improvement in the local economy
which rebounded in the second half of 2009. However the recovery process
is still in its infancy. The economy has been supported by strong growth
in China, the Hong Kong Government’s support for SMEs and an exceptionally
low interest rate environment mirroring that of the United States.

Real GDP grew by 2.6 percent in the fourth quarter of 2009 compared to
a steep contraction of 7.5 percent in the first quarter. The improvement
followed slower export contraction of 2.6 percent in the fourth quarter
compared with the dramatic drop of 22.7 percent experienced in the first
three months of the year. This implies that the global economy began to
recover in the second half of 2009 but trade with developed economies
remained weak. Imports began to pick up earlier than exports due to
continued strong economic growth in China. China also contributed to a
rebound in tourism in the third quarter spurring a rise in retail sales.

Strong capital inflows have prompted the HKMA to inject liquidity into
the monetary system frequently to defend the currency peg. This has kept
HIBOR at very low levels. High liquidity also underpinned the jump in
asset prices during the second half of 2009. However, the effects of the
recession continued to impact the local banking sector as overall loan
demand remained weak. This in turn led to a decrease in the loan-to-
deposit ratio.

Despite the challenging operating environment, our asset quality has
remained sound. This has largely been due to our effective credit risk
monitoring system supported by the low interest rate environment. We
were able to achieve satisfactory asset growth in areas such as residential
mortgages, SME financing, consumer lending as well as across our Mainland
operations.

Here are some key financial ratios for the year under review:

o Return on average shareholders’ funds for 2009: 10.6 percent

° Loan-to-deposit ratio as at 31st December, 2009: 63.2 percent

o Average liquidity ratio for 2009: 53.6 percent

Capital adequacy ratio as at 31st December, 2009: 17.8 percent

The Group currently has 42 branches in Hong Kong, 12 branches in Macau,
5 branches and 5 sub-branches in the Mainland. As at the end of December
20009, the Group employed a total of 3,093 staff.
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Looking ahead, we expect that the operating environment will continue
to improve as the global economy recovers. External demand is expected
to pick up gradually which should be advantageous to China’s export-
oriented industries as well as our own smaller open economy. However,
any sudden reversal of capital inflows could lead to a correction in asset
markets and interest rates causing volatility.

In terms of business strategy, we will focus on expansion in the high-
growth markets of China and Macau. Having successfully incorporated a
wholly-owned subsidiary bank in China, we are now able to offer a full
range of RMB services there. In response to the new policy announcement
by Beijing in December 2009, we will also capture the long-term business
opportunity to offer RMB-denominated services in Hong Kong. Meanwhile
we recognise the need to rebuild trust with our customers in the aftermath
of the financial crisis by refocusing our Wealth Management business
from product sales to meeting individual customer needs.

In summary, | believe that in addition to our solid business platform locally,
we have a clear and focused strategy in China and Macau. We are well
positioned to capture opportunities in these high growth markets. At the
same time we will remain prudently cautious about the pace of global
economic recovery in 2010 as governments contemplate strategies for
the withdrawal of fiscal stimuli and deposit guarantee schemes.

Once again | wish to take this opportunity to thank all our customers,
shareholders and colleagues for their confidence and support in Wing
Hang Bank. | am indebted to the Board of directors for their continued
support and counsel.

FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick
Chairman and Chief Executive
Hong Kong, 29th March, 2010
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Savings Deposit

Financial Review

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, profit attributable to shareholders
increased by 3.7 percent to HK$1,204.7 million compared to HK$1,161.9
million in 2008.

Listed below are the key financial statistics for the financial year:

o The Group's profit before taxation increased by 5.3 percent to
HK$1,433.9 million due to a significant decrease in impairment
charges.

o Net interest income increased by 0.6 percent to HK$2,460.0 million
supported by an improvement in treasury operations. Partially
offsetting this increase was a lower yield on our interest-free funds.
Net interest margin narrowed 2 basis points to 1.82 percent.

o Other operating income decreased 11.0 percent to HK$860.4 million
due to lower foreign exchange trading income, trade commissions
and wealth management commissions.

o Net unrealised losses from financial instruments held for trading
and designated at fair value stood at HK$467.7 million.
-
SFEE
Loan Composition

BT

21%

FEAHET TR 30% B EABR 6%
Non-domestic Loans Loans to Individuals

T 6 6% B FEETIRIE 22%
Loans to Corporate Residential - Individuals

L IEES 10% B EEEHER 3%
Commercial MASHEZEERE

HOS & PSPS*

B PERRRNIE 19% ~
Property Development 0 BEFRE 3%
& Investment Trade Finance

B BEFRECER 1%

Share Financing

* Home Ownership Scheme and Private Sector Participation Scheme
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o Total operating expenses increased slightly by 0.7 percent to
HK$1,571.5 million. Consequently the Group’s cost-to-income ratio
increased from 41.2 percent to 55.1 percent. If the expenses for
the sale of structured products and fair value change from trading
and financial instruments designated at fair value were excluded,
the cost-to-income ratio would be 42.5 percent.

o Impairment losses and allowances for loans and advances decreased
88.1 percent to HK$53.0 million due to an improvement in asset
prices supported by the favorable low interest rate environment.
Impaired loans as of 31st December, 2009 stood at HK$410.1 million,
equivalent to 0.51 percent of total loans. Meanwhile the charge-
off ratio for credit cards increased to 2.80 percent of card receivables
compared with 1.44 percent previously.

o Total deposits increased by 8.8 percent to HK$127.4 billion while
customer deposits grew by 9.6 percent to HK$126.2 billion.

o Total volume of loans remained constant at HK$80.5 billion. Higher
demand for mortgages, consumer loans as well as improved business
operations in China were largely offset by a decrease in vehicle
financing and trade financing.

Retail Banking

Profit before taxation in the Retail Banking division increased 33.2 percent
over 2008. This was mainly due to a significant decrease in allowances for
impaired loans.

A successful innovative deposit program launched in early 2009 helped
the Bank achieve above-market deposit growth of 9.6 percent during the
year.

In the mortgage market pricing, competition was fierce. Nevertheless we
maintained our strategy of focusing on meeting individual customer needs
and offering HIBOR-based mortgage loans throughout the year. This helped
us to achieve satisfactory growth in mortgage lending.

In spite of the recession, our prudent credit policy enabled us to maintain
a quality and sustainable credit card user base. We successfully expanded
our credit card customer base as retail sales recovered in the second half
of the year. Retail Banking has continued to leverage our credit card merchant
base and the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme to expand our SME business
portfolio.
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We also experienced above-market growth in the stock brokerage business
as we successfully acquired new customers through a well received elPO
service launched during 2009. We will continue to enhance our internet
platform to accommodate a wider range of investment products thereby
providing a more efficient, convenient and quality range of services to our
customers. Although the Wealth Management business endured a challenging
fiscal year with a sharp reduction in income, we expect improved results in
2010.

Turning to our branch network, we continued to make further upgrades
in 2009. For instance we relocated our Tsim Sha Tsui branch to a more
convenient location providing a more comfortable environment for our
customers. Indeed we believe that high quality customer service is critical
at all times. Towards this end, the Bank has established a practice of carrying
out regular checks to bolster service quality control. We are committed to
implementing service improvement programs on a continual basis.

Consumer Finance

The year proved a challenging one for Wing Hang Credit as we emerged
from the global financial crisis in late 2008. Despite these challenges, the
company achieved a solid financial performance thanks to its continued
market leadership in the consumer loan market. During the year the company
launched various new loan products such as personal loans, business loans,
tax loans and property mortgage packages. These initiatives were well
received leading to a remarkable increase in loan draw-downs. As a result
the company recorded remarkable results as loan growth surged 20.7
percent compared to the previous year. Two new branches — at Prince
Edward and Fortress Hill — were opened in response to popular customer
demands.

Over the coming years Wing Hang Credit will continue to enhance consumer
value by providing quality service and product innovation. In order to sustain
growth in 2010, the company will seek to boost performance by proactively
identifying new business opportunities while maintaining the flexibility to
adapt to sudden market changes.

Auto and Equipment Leasing

Reflecting the decline in vehicle sales in Hong Kong, the Auto and Equipment
Finance division experienced a moderate decrease in loan assets. However
we managed to achieve a respectable financial performance in 2009. This
was largely due to our ability to maintain stable interest margins on vehicle
and equipment loans in an exceptionally low-cost funding environment.

In the middle of 2009 we successfully integrated the operations of our
two finance subsidiaries, Wing Hang Finance Company Limited and Inchroy
Credit Corporation Limited, into the Auto and Equipment Finance division.
The combined operations not only strengthened our leading position in
the sector but also enabled us to consolidate our resources to provide an
even better services to our customers. Our next goal is to expand our
operations to the Mainland.
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Wing Hang Insurance

Sentiment towards the insurance industry was badly affected by the Lehman
Brothers mini-bond issue in 2009 making the marketing of life products
very difficult. Despite those challenges, we were still able to deliver results
that were above our initial budget forecast by focusing instead on the
general insurance business.

In China the insurance business was also affected by uncertainty over the
economy. Our priority during the year was to set up the necessary
infrastructure to sell life insurance products. We believe this business will
start delivering results in 2010.

In other business units, Wing Hang Zurich Insurance recorded solid profit
in 2009 while Hong Kong Life resumed profitability as premium sales
increased. Bank Consortium Trust continued to make a steady contribution
to the Bank’s bottom line.

Wing Hang Shares Brokerage

Despite a decrease in market turnover, commission income in our Shares
Brokerage division increased by 35.4 percent compared with the previous
year. To further expand our market position, we will continue to upgrade
our trading capacity. We will also encourage our retail investors to conduct
transactions electronically via the internet or our Interactive Voice Respond
System.

Corporate Banking

Global trade suffered as the economy sank into recession during the first
half of 2009 leading to a decline of 29.7 percent in trade financing revenues
compared with the previous year. However, we were able to boost overall
revenues by focusing on new products such as bilateral loans and loans
made under the Special Loan Guarantee Scheme. Together with the release
of impairment charges for loans and an increase in non-interest income,
Corporate Banking contributed 14.1 percent of the Group’s pre-tax profit
in 2009.

We expect business to improve in 2010 as the economies of major export
markets start to recover.

China

Overall our business in China has been expanding as economic growth in
the country remains strong. Loans for use in Mainland China increased by
6.1 percent to HK$14.0 billion as competition from local banks eased in
the second half of the year and loan demand from SMEs picked up.
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One area we have been actively promoting is equipment financing services
to manufacturers in the Guangdong Province. Our new Zhuhai Branch,
which started operations in 2009, contributed to this initiative.

Indeed we continue to develop our branch network in the Mainland. Apart
from the Bank’s wholesale branch in Shenzhen, the network — operating
under Wing Hang Bank (China) - comprises 4 branches in Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Shanghai and Zhuhai as well as a total of 5 sub-branches.
Benefiting from the CEPA VI arrangement, our new Foshan sub-branch is
opened in March 2010.

Looking ahead, we plan to gradually expand our branch network primarily
in the Pearl River Delta region before moving into other parts of the country.
Demonstrating our strong commitment in China, an independent data
center was established in Shenzhen in October 2009.

Treasury

The Treasury division posted a decline of 82.2 percent in profit before
taxation compared with the previous year. This was mainly a result of
unrealised losses on financial instruments designated at fair value. Partially
offsetting these losses was an improvement in net interest income on our
debt securities investments.

Macau

In Macau, Banco Weng Hang recorded a moderate decrease in pre-tax
profit amid a volatile and challenging economic environment. Macau'’s
GDP shrank by 6.8 percent in real terms in the first three quarters of 2009
compared with the same period in the previous year, even though the
economy returned to positive growth in the third quarter.

Net interest income decreased by 11.1 percent as interest rate margins
were squeezed by the low yield on our interest free funds amidst an extremely
low interest rate environment. Non-interest income decreased by 6.1 percent
as fee income from trade and wealth management services was impacted
by the effects of the global recession. Loans decreased by 4.1 percent
compared with the end of 2008, partly due to the scheduled repayment
of certain large corporate loans.

Nevertheless we were able to achieve above-market growth of 12.4 percent
in our deposit base as we gained market share through the successful
promotion of new deposit programs and other products.
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The Directors of Wing Hang Bank, Limited (the “Bank”) have pleasure in
presenting their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the year ended 31st December, 2009.

Principal Place of Business

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 161 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The Group is engaged in commercial banking and related financial services.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of operations
of the Group during the year are set out in notes 21 and 36 to the financial
statements.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Group and the Bank as at 31st December, 2009 are
set out in the financial statements on pages 51 to 201.

The Board of Directors has recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.50 (2008: HK$0.10) per share for the year ended 31st December,
2009 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Bank on Thursday, 27th May, 2010, subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Bank to be held on
Thursday, 27th May, 2010 (“AGM"). The final dividend, if approved, will
be paid on Tuesday, 8th June, 2010.

Reserves

Profit attributable to shareholders of HK$1,204,665,000 (2008:
HK$1,161,916,000) has been transferred to reserves. Details of the
movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Major Customers

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for less than 30% of the total income of the Group for the year.
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Fixed Assets
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group and of the Bank
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

There were no movements in the share capital of the Bank during the
year. Details of the share capital are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

Charitable Donations
During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and community
purposes amounting to approximately HK$ 1,199,000 (2008: HK$3,429,000).

Directors
The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick JP (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr Frank John WANG (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Senior General Manager)

Non-executive Directors

Mr HO Chi Wai Louis

Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN (appointed on 15th January, 2009)
Mr Christopher Robert STURDY

(appointed on 13th March, 2009)

Mr Andrew Michael GORDON (resigned on 13th March, 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr CHENG Hon Kwan GBS, JP

Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose GBS, JP

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr TUNG Chee Chen

Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon MBE, JP (passed away on 18th February, 2010)

The Board expresses its appreciation to Mr Andrew Michael GORDON for
his contributions during his years of services.

The Board reports with regret the passing away of Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon
on 18th February, 2010. Dr LEE, as a Director of the Bank for 18 years,
made invaluable contributions and offered his wise counsel to the Bank
during his tenure of office.
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In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association, Dr FUNG Yuk Bun
Patrick, Mr Frank John WANG and Mr TUNG Chee Chen wiill retire from
office by rotation at the AGM. These retiring Directors, being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election at the AGM. Other remaining
Directors of the Bank will continue in office.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Bank or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the Bank within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

No contract of significance to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Bank had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Except for the share option schemes and the employee incentive plans of
the Bank, at no time during the year was the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Bank to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Bank or any other body corporate. Details of the share option schemes
and the employee incentive plans are set out in the following sections
headed “Share Option Schemes” and “Employee Incentive Plans”.
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H2009F 12 A31H » RIBITEERITHRAHRFEE
FEZBMEATRAETRAEMAAEE (&R F
F R HEGG ([FEHEH]) EXVER) Z2km - 86
BOREEFP  EHEZERZRABWOT :

ARITEBRRO2HE

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Bank or any Associated

Corporation

As at 31st December, 2009, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and Chief Executive of the Bank and their respective associates in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Bank or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")) were as follows:

Long positions in Ordinary Shares of the Bank

HEETT

Bz

R

BHHE HiEE(5)

Number of shares Percentage

RIRE #E of issued

EARS RkEs ZERS W0 MO share

Personal  Family Corporate  Option  Award Eth A capital

EZfA Name of Director interest interest interest Note (1) Note (2)  Others Total  Note (5)

BEE FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick 2,982,000 — — 230,000 650,000 T3 (3) 3,862,000 1.31
Note (3)

HEE FUNG Yuk Sing Michael 3,000,000 60,000 — 180,000 325,000 B3 (3) 3,565,000 1.21
Note (3)

&R HO Chi Wai Louis 304,000 100,000 — — 10,000 W3E (3) 414,000 0.14
Note (3)

BER LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose 73,026 — — — — — 73,026 0.02

THE LEE Kwok Yin Simon — — 310,000 — — 505,581 815,581 0.28
(72010527 18R & tt) (passed away on 18/02/2010) W5t ()
Note (4)

IXE Frank John WANG — — — 80,000 395,000 — 475,000 0.16
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Subordinated Notes of the Bank

+8 (Ex)
Amount (US$)
A EN R EEE
Personal Family Corporate Hith At
EEHA Name of Director interest interest interest Others Total
5 S5 FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick 2,000,000 — — 4,000,000 6,000,000
B3t (6)
Note (6)
YK FUNG Yuk Sing Michael — 400,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 7,400,000
B3t (6)
Note (6)
Al EE HO Chi Wai Louis 980,000 500,000 — 4,000,000 5,480,000
B3t (6)
Note (6)
THE LEE Kwok Yin Simon — 500,000 — 12,000,000 12,500,000
(FA2010%F2 A 18 H B th) (passed away on 18/02/2010) Bi5 (4)
Note (4)
IEE - Notes:

(1) REETRBEARITNI19934 6790 K2003F4A
20BN R EIRTES - FBHANIZER
[RIGHETBI | 2 ZEEA ©

(2) RHEETIREANRITR2004F4822B8 KM 2 B
BEEERTES - FHEINERAEES BE
gl zEHA -

(3) BEEEEL - BEBAERASELEZEBER
HE AT ABREBMR AR + YKF Holding Corporation
KTessel Inc. RBEFAZABERIHEA ° WEQA
MABRITZREHNERA TR FER| 2EH
ﬁq °

4) WERZDHFHREBLZREETNFE -

(5) 20094 12A31H ' AT Z2EEHTRMH A
295,044,3800%

(6)  ULFERER AIRE AR A AFEAE2,000,0005 7T K YKF
Holding Corporation¥%2,000,0003 7t ° R E B R
A&} YKF Holding Corporationtg A{E5% + 5 4E 3
Bt SEBEERMAEELEEZREBEREMA
TREERIEA °

BREXHBEELAETEEURBAZEZAALR
TEAMBARRAR ZIEE =N - 7200912
A31H  ARTTEERTHAH I ST 2HE
ALTRARITSRAF AR EE (B REHEN) 2
B& 5 - MHERG REHFS - MERE TAEDEIOR

A
B o

(1) Share options were granted to the Directors pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted by the Bank on 9th June, 1993 and 24th April, 2003.
Details of the share options are stated under the section headed “Share
Option Schemes”.

(2) Share awards were granted to the Directors pursuant to the employee incentive
plan adopted by the Bank on 22nd April, 2004. Details of the share awards
are stated under the section headed “Employee Incentive Plans”.

3) Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick, Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael and the spouse of Mr
HO Chi Wai Louis, together with other parties, are eligible beneficiaries of
the trusts of Po Ding Company Limited, YKF Holding Corporation and Tessel
Inc. The interests of these corporations in the shares of the Bank are stated
under the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests”.

(4) These interests were held through Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon's family trust.

(5) The number of issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December, 2009 was
295,044,380 shares.

(6) These interests represented US$2,000,000 held by Po Ding Company Limited
and US$2,000,000 held by YKF Holding Corporation. Both of Po Ding Company
Limited and YKF Holding Corporation are trusts of which Dr FUNG Yuk Bun
Patrick, Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael and the spouse of Mr HO Chi Wai Louis,
together with other parties, are eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above and for certain Directors holding non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of some of the subsidiaries of the Bank as
nominee shareholders, as at 31st December, 2009, none of the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Bank or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Bank or any associated corporation (within the meaning of the SFO).

WING HANG BANK ¢ Annual Report 2009 25



ESERE

Report of the Directors

FERFER Substantial Shareholders’ Interests

72009412 318 @ RIFAIBITIHEFIEDIZE336  As at 31st December, 2009, the following persons (other than a Director
EREBFE 2 ELMATREE: - TP AL (KRIRTTE  or Chief Executive of the Bank) had interests or short positions in the
HRRBTHABRIN RARITZ M5 RMBERG  shares and underlying shares of the Bank as recorded in the register required
PR ERSORE to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

TBITEBRRD2HFE Long positions in Ordinary Shares of the Bank

1HE T

BARZESL

M5 (6)

Percentage

gt 4] of issued

Eyi S RitEE Number of share capital

Name Capacity and nature shares Note (6)

BANGIEIRTTERR Sy EERER 59,825,053 20.28
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation Interest in controlled corporation FaE(T)
Note (1)

AtrrefEIRTT R RERE R 59,825,053 20.28
The Bank of New York Mellon Interest in controlled corporation FEE(T)
Note (1)

BNY International Financing Corporation EmEaA 59,825,053 20.28
Beneficial owner M EE(1)
Note (1)

Federal Trust Company Limited ELIN 35,034,100 11.87
Trustee M 5E(2) 2(4)
Notes (2) & (4)

YKF Holding Corporation SFEA 24,394,900 8.27
Trustee FI5E(2) R2.(4)
Notes (2) & (4)

REBFRRA FFEA 24,156,000 8.19
Po Ding Company Limited Trustee MHEE(3) K2(4)
Notes (3) & (4)

GZ Trust Corporation ZEA 24,156,000 8.19
Trustee M 5E(3) K2(4)
Notes (3) & (4)

KFI|RIT (RIEBA) BRAF RIBA 23,378,400 7.92
Wing Hang Bank (Nominees) Limited Nominee M 5E(2) K2(4)
Notes (2) & (4)

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited BB 20,564,239 6.96
Investment manager 35 (5)
Note (5)

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its subsidiaries & %38 21,100,739 7.15
Investment manager Bt 5E(5)
Note (5)

Tessel Inc. ZFEA 10,639,200 3.61
Trustee FI5E(2) %2(4)
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Notes (2) & (4)
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(2)

(5)

BNY International Financing Corporation & 4 471§
BIRTT22BWE QR - MOBERITRANIEE
RITEBZ2EMBAR

Federal Trust Company Limited&Tessel Inc. & YKF
Holding CorporationZ Z5E A ° K FiR1T ((REBA)
AR 2 A AYKF Holding Corporation# T &) 2 &
RFEFAA -

REBBR AT AGZ Trust Corporation2 & #E
REABMRAF] ~ YKF Holding Corporation ¥ Tessel

Inc. & REFE < IERE L IFEER T4 R KR L
EZRBEREMALIREERTEA °

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited%
Aberdeen Asset Management PlcZ 2 &l E A &) °

K20095F12A31H - "RITZ2EEHTRH A
295,044,3800% °

M ESCIREEE SN 0 FA2009F12831H » BEET A
SRITRR D SRR (D o 2 H i slOR B R s AR

RITARIERE 2

{PIFEI36IHRAFE 2ELTMA -

Notes:

(1)

)

(€)

)

(5)

(6)

BNY International Financing Corporation is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
The Bank of New York Mellon. The Bank of New York Mellon is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation.

Federal Trust Company Limited is the trustee for Tessel Inc. and YKF Holding
Corporation. Wing Hang Bank (Nominees) Limited is the registered holder
of certain shares on behalf of YKF Holding Corporation.

Po Ding Company Limited is wholly-owned by GZ Trust Corporation.

Each of Po Ding Company Limited, YKF Holding Corporation and Tessel Inc.
is a trust of which Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick, Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael and
the spouse of Mr HO Chi Wai Louis, together with other parties, are eligible
beneficiaries.

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc.

The number of issued shares of the Bank as at 31st December, 2009 was
295,044,380 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December, 2009, no other interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Bank were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Bank under section 336 of the

SFO.
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RERITIRE 2 R EI X 2003F 4 A24 B H #1
([RRETE]) - REIB - R1993F6 9B K
2001426 B185] 2 RAR BT &) 4% 1E (11993
T2 BECAE—SWH  WERZTEELZ
RIEEGBERR WA TEZETERER ©

REFEEMAXZMERARESF ETRR([LT
BAD AT HEZ R erélJZ%EZZDT

(1) RREFEEM
REEFIEERAEERBEL2EALE
HRE  EREAEEFELERMASEX
BB TENAKRERERERHHAEE
BRMNARENES - TTRABRESR -

(2) *”Ex%*fiﬂ//\%
EFTAENBEEAEE CEBES -
?E%ﬂ §$ ’ Tfm—.[wugﬁﬁﬁfﬁZuuﬂﬁﬁg

(3) WFERTZHEERMNEE
IRIBRARERT SR 2 AT B RRMER T 817
ZARRITIRD T % A14,678,0000% + BERMAR
MHELEE B ARRITEEITRAZL5% °

(4) RBREFETERSRETERFZ LR

RAT R E R I 8 S E o B A
%Uﬁﬂmﬁwﬂx’fé(&?‘EEﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁHﬁ
B mMEERAERTTERINZEALZRNA
2o 75A1£T"J121IHHHFHWQ7F FHBEE TR
1% B EHE — SR B A L EA
1218 A MR 2 RABERE L ERIRREE - Bl
ARARTERRASHESTAEE - MBEH
SEALREBBALARERER -
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Share Option Schemes

The Bank’s existing share option scheme was adopted on 24th April, 2003
("Share Option Scheme”). On the same day, the share option scheme of
the Bank adopted on 9th June, 1993 as amended on 26th April, 2001
was terminated (the “1993 Scheme”) and ceased to have any further
effect, except that the options granted thereunder remain valid and
exercisable until expiry of their exercise periods.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme as required to be disclosed under
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) is as follows:

(1) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant options
to selected participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution
to the Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and
retention of high calibre professionals, executives and employees
who are instrumental to the growth of the Group.

(2) Participants of the Share Option Scheme
The Directors may at their absolute discretion, invite any full time
employee of the Group, including executive directors, to take up
options to subscribe for shares.

(3) Maximum number of shares available for issue
Maximum number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 14,678,000 shares, which is 5% of the issued share capital
of the Bank as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

(4) Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Option Scheme
The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital. Any further grant
of options in excess of this limit in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such further grant shall be subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting of the Bank with such participants and
his associates abstaining from voting.
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9

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option

An option may be exercised during the period commencing on the
first anniversary of the date of grant of such option and expiring at
the close of business on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant
of such option.

The minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised

The minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised is one year after the date of grant.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option and the period
open for acceptance

An option must be accepted within 21 days from the date of grant
and a consideration of HK$1.00 must be paid on acceptance.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be a price determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant which must be a business
day; and

(i) the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant which must be a
business day.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will end at the close of business on 24th
April, 2013.
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RARE B E - RIEREAETEI AT HREEME  As at the date of this report, the total number of shares of the Bank
T2 ARRITRE D £ 13,793,0000% © AARITHEE  available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 13,793,000 shares,
BEITRAZA7% > 20095 12A318 » &AEE1TH  which represents 4.7% of the issued share capital of the Bank on the
PRBZ 2 WTEBABET7257T - R EWHEABIIR  same day. On 31st December, 2009, the closing price of the shares of the
T RIE19935 8 R RAXEET I HMATITE 2R Bank on the Stock Exchange was HK$72.5. Details of the movements of
REHERAEL ZE2009F 12 A3 B I FE 2 EBEIEWE  outstanding options granted under the 1993 Scheme and the Share Option

wmr Scheme during the year ended 31st December, 2009 as required under
the Listing Rules are disclosed as follows:
Rk
Number of options
7 01/01/2009 7 31/12/2009
RATE X8/ RITHE
Outstanding 788 Outstanding 7B
BB as at Bl oy :d Lapsed/ as at Exercise
Date of grant  01/01/2009 Granted Exercised cancelled 31/12/2009 price
ok
HK$
gE Director
E SE R FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick 10/03/2001 ™ 50,000 — — — 50,000 23.60
15/03/2002 ™ 40,000 — — — 40,000 26.30
14/03/2003 ™ 40,000 — — — 40,000 26.50
21/05/2004 @ 50,000 — — — 50,000 43.80
14/01/2005 @ 50,000 — — — 50,000 51.25
iR FUNG Yuk Sing Michael 10/03/2001 ™ 40,000 — — — 40,000 23.60
15/03/2002 ™ 30,000 — — — 30,000 26.30
14/03/2003 ™ 30,000 — — — 30,000 26.50
21/05/2004 @ 40,000 — — — 40,000 43.80
14/01/2005 @ 40,000 — — — 40,000 51.25
FxRE Frank John WANG 21/05/2004 @ 40,000 — — — 40,000 43.80
14/01/2005 @ 40,000 — — — 40,000 51.25
EE® Employee © 10/03/2001 ™ 60,000 — — — 60,000 23.60
15/03/2002 ™ 20,000 — — — 20,000 26.30
14/01/2003 ™ 40,000 — — — 40,000 25.80
21/05/2004 @ 170,000 — — — 170,000 43.80
14/01/2005 @ 50,000 — — — 50,000 51.25
28/01/2005 @ 80,000 — — — 80,000 50.25
910,000 910,000
(1) REHERE1993FEIR L - (1) Options were granted under the 1993 Scheme.
(2) RBREBBRBRESERD - (2)  Options were granted under the Share Option Scheme.
(3) WRZEEAERI0E - (3)  The number of employees involved is 10.
(4) BOHRBEZTERAZARERLBHE (4)  Exercise period of an option commences on the first anniversary of
BFEEER10RFLERHEHER M - the date of grant of such option and expiring at the close of business
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on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant of such option.
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Employee Incentive Plans

The Bank’s existing employee incentive plan was approved by the
independent shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 30th
April, 2009 (the “2009 EIP"). The 2009 EIP is to renew the employee
incentive plan approved by the independent shareholders on 22nd April,
2004 and expired in April 2009 (the “2004 EIP").

The principal objectives of the 2009 EIP are to reward Executive Directors
and key employees of the Group for their contributions and to incentivise
such persons to remain in employment with the Group.

Under the 2009 EIP, the Board may during the first five years after the
2009 EIP was approved grant awards at no consideration for certain Executive
Directors and key employees of the Group to acquire ordinary shares in
the Bank at a nominal value of HK$1.00 per share. The fair value is measured
at the date of grant and is charged to the income statement and credited
to shareholders’ funds between the date of grant and the vesting date.
The cash amount equal to the dividend that will be paid during the period
up to vesting is charged to the income statement as bonus expenses on
an accrual basis.

The awards granted under the 2004 EIP and 2009 EIP vested in stages
between the sixth and the tenth anniversary of the date of grant according
to its terms and conditions. Awards granted under the 2004 EIP and 2009
EIP were as follows:
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fedang=p i
REHE 2N EE
Number of awards Fair value
»n »n of awards
B As at Es- As at at the date
Date of grant 01/01/2009 Granted 31/12/2009 of grant
peiticd
HK$
-3 Director
55 65 8, FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick 21/05/2004 M 200,000 — 200,000 42.80
23/01/2006 M 450,000 — 450,000 56.20
IR FUNG Yuk Sing Michael 21/05/2004 M 100,000 — 100,000 42.80
23/01/2006 M 225,000 — 225,000 56.20
A ERFE® HO Chi Wai Louis © 21/05/2004 M 10,000 — 10,000 42.80
FRE Frank John WANG 21/05/2004 M 125,000 — 125,000 42.80
23/01/2006 M 270,000 — 270,000 56.20
EEW Employee @ 21/05/2004 M 60,000 — 60,000 42.80
23/01/2006 M 615,000 — 615,000 56.20
29/01/2007 M 140,000 — 140,000 94.60
05/11/2009 @ — 135,000 135,000 74.50
2,195,000 135,000 2,330,000

(1) #BERIE2004(0E B SR TEIE S -
(2) HEEBIE2009EE EETERL -
(3)  F2008F7ATEBHEMITESHETARIENTES -

4 BRZEEAHBRIE -

BEXRS

200918 B #8108 R AT E S BITARRITHR
MK ETRAT ZBERZ S - R 20095F4 430
HEREADZBREBFAS L BEZRAERAREY
BRI ATEEREBBALTEAREARARAZR
WERE - 2000EERBFECETBRENEES
AEEBELHEMZRTEERASEEIZREE I
ERBBRSILEATBAAEER N2 REH - EE2E
A 72200918 B SEEh A B EE B F R LERE
BRYTETHOESRETEZERERE - UEREEE
#1.00THE AZRNERTT E BARAR (0 - 2009(E B EE) 5T
T A FE1T 2 IR1D 48805 1,000,0008% @ & A A] B
TFRTEET2RHBETATZK500,0008 °
20091E B #ZE) &8 T2 1 2 SR B i H AR R AGERR
BEBEHRTECRFEFEI0CEFRNELENR -
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(1) Awards were granted under the 2004 EIP.
(2) Awards were granted under the 2009 EIP.

(3) Re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive Director on 1st July,
2008.

(4) The number of employees involved is 15.

Connected Transaction

The 2009 EIP which involved the issue of new shares in the Bank to Executive
Directors constituted a connected transaction of the Bank under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, at the annual general meeting held on 30th April, 2009,
the relevant resolution was subject to the approval of the independent
shareholders of the Bank with the Executive Directors of the Bank and
their associates abstaining from voting. The principal objectives of the
2009 EIP are to reward Executive Directors and key employees of the
Group for their contributions and to incentivise such persons to remain in
employment with the Group. The Board may during the first five years
after the 2009 EIP was approved grant awards at no consideration for
certain Executive Directors and key employees of the Group to acquire
ordinary shares in the Bank at a nominal value of HK$1.00 per share. The
maximum number of shares that may be issued under the 2009 EIP is
1,000,000 shares, of which no more that 500,000 shares may be issued
to Executive Directors. The awards granted under the 2009 EIP shall vest
in stages between the sixth and the tenth anniversary of the date of grant
according to its terms and conditions.
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Management Contract

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Bank was entered into or existed
during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Bank’s Listed

Securities

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions by the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, of the Bank’s listed securities during the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

Human Resources
Human resources are key capital of the Group. Our strategic imperative is
to develop employees and maximise their capabilities to meet challenges
and deliver business results.

Employee Statistics
As at 31st December, 2009, the Group's total staff number was as follows:

i Hong Kong 2,102
B A3 Mainland China 563
SBFT Macau 428
&ast Total 3,093
& & 7 B Employee Remuneration

i

AEBETRBLEBEIHERE F—RRAC
TwWNTE - BREMSENRERRSFE  BX
REBFORBEAT - REBETREBISELA
FARBERMREZET -

\;

BUES
ARXFREETEREARLERREYE  AEE
FRAEBIBTEIED  BERE  RE  #RERB
B FEEBERUEERE-

AEBEETBHREESHYLGRE - RELERE
R WEBBETEDAEZRERHEEZEAL
mBLIRRERR c FARNRITIRERUABRELEES
X -BHER REBRANRERERIEZT
(=37

The Group adopts a holistic approach towards rewarding and recognising
its employees for good performance. Remuneration incentives are
performance driven where benchmarking with market practice and salary
reviews are performed periodically to upkeep competitiveness and retain
talents. The Group also operates a discretionary bonus scheme to recognise
performers for their exceptional contributions.

Employee Care

In supporting employees to achieve a healthy work-life balance, the Group
organised “Employee Weeks" program during the year with focus on
health, family, leisure, continuous learning and social responsibility.

The Group continues to encourage its employees to participate in social
services by offering social service leave and to take care of their personal
life and psychological well being through the service of an Employee
Assistance Program. Workshops on healthy life style, stress management,
family relationships and environmental protection were organised during
the year.
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Employee Development

To sustain performance improvement, the Group has organised a wide
range of training programs covering both technical and management aspects.
Employees are encouraged to pursue professional or academic qualifications
through the Group's Education Subsidy Schemes.

Succession planning and management trainee programs were organised
to build a pool of future leaders to help sustain the Group's long-term
competitiveness.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 39
to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance
The Bank'’s corporate governance practices are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 35 to 43.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
The financial statements for year ended 31st December, 2009 comply
fully with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules.

Public Float

As at the date of this report, the Bank has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly
available to the Bank and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Bank.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Bank is to
be proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick
Chairman & Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2010
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank has applied the principles and complied with the code provisions
and certain recommended best practices as set out in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of the Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31st December, 2009, except for the
deviations from code provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.3. Considered reasons
for the deviations are stated in the following relevant paragraphs.

The Bank has also complied with the module on Corporate Governance
of Locally Incorporated Authorised Institutions under the Supervisory Policy
Manual issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA").

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Bank has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"), including amendments as effected from time to time, as its own
code of conduct to be observed by Directors, Chief Executive and relevant
employees who are likely in possession of unpublished price sensitive
information in relation to the Bank.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st December, 2009.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

Throughout the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Board maintained
a balanced composition of Executive and Non-executive Directors, including
Independent Non-executive Directors. As at the date of this report, the
Board comprises ten members, of whom three are Executive Directors.
Amongst the seven Non-executive Directors, four are independent. The
independent element on the Board is strong to facilitate independent
judgement. Members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick P (Chairman & Chief Executive)
Mr Frank John WANG (Deputy Chief Executive)

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Sen/or General Manager)

Non-executive Directors

Mr HO Chi Wai Louis

Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN

Mr Christopher Robert STURDY
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr CHENG Hon Kwan GBS, JP

Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose GBS, JP

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr TUNG Chee Chen

During the year, Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN was appointed as a Non-executive
Director effective 15th January, 2009. Mr Andrew Michael GORDON resigned
as a Non-executive Director and Mr Christopher Robert STURDY was
appointed as a Non-executive Director, both with effect from 13th March,
2009. Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Bank, passed away on 18th February, 2010.

Save for that Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick and Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael
are brothers, and Mr HO Chi Wai Louis are their brother-in-law, all other
Directors have no relationship with each other.

Each Director possesses skills and experiences appropriate to the business
of the Group and their biographical details are set out on pages 8 to 12.
The Bank also meets the requirement of Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules
with at least one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

During the year, six board meetings were held. Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick,
Mr Frank John WANG, Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael and Dr CHENG Hon
Kwan attended all meetings. Mr HO Chi Wai Louis, Mr LAU Hon Chuen
Ambrose and Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius attended five meetings, and Mr
TUNG Chee Chen attended four meetings. Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN attended
three meetings. Mr Christopher Robert STURDY attended two out of the
four meetings held since his appointment on 13th March, 2009. Dr LEE
Kwok Yin Simon attended one meeting. Mr Andrew Michael GORDON
attended two meetings held before his resignation on 13th March, 2009.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Bank deviated from code provision A.2.1 which requires that the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be segregated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Dr FUNG Yuk Bun Patrick
is the Chairman and Chief Executive of the Bank. The Board considered
that the non-segregation would not result in considerable concentration
of power in one person not only because of the presence of Independent
Non-executive Directors but also that The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation, a substantial shareholder, is represented by two Non-executive
Directors. There is a balance of power and authority such that no one
individual has unfettered power of decision. Non-segregation has the
advantage of a strong and consistent leadership which is conducive to
making and implementing decisions quickly and consistently.

Non-executive Directors

The Bank deviated from code provision A.4.1 which requires that Non-
executive Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Bank were not appointed for a specific term but their
respective terms of office are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meetings in accordance with the Bank's
Articles of Association (“Articles”). The Articles require that at every annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
exceeding one-third shall retire from office.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
The Bank’s remuneration policy aims to ensure that the level of remuneration
is sufficient and market competitive. The Remuneration Committee was
set up in 1995 with specific terms of reference and delegated with the
authority and duties which include, amongst others, making
recommendations to the Board on the Bank’s policy and structure for
remuneration of all Directors and Senior Management of the Bank,
determining the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and Senior Management, and reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration of Directors and Senior Management of the Bank by reference
to corporate goals and objectives as determined by the Board from time
to time. Factors such as business performance of the Bank and emoluments
paid by comparable banks will be considered. No Director will be involved
in deciding his own remuneration.
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The terms of reference require that the Remuneration Committee shall
comprise not less than two members and a majority of them shall be
Independent Non-executive Directors. Currently, members of the
Remuneration Committee are Dr CHENG Hon Kwan and Mr LAU Hon
Chuen Ambrose. Both are Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Bank. Dr CHENG Hon Kwan is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 5th November, 2009. Dr LEE Kwok Yin
Simon, a member of the Remuneration Committee during the year, passed

away on 18th February, 2010.

In January 2009, the Remuneration Committee met once to discuss and
approve the bonus payments to Executive Directors and Senior Management
for the year ended 31st December, 2008, remuneration packages of Executive
Directors and Senior Management for the year ended 31st December,
2009 and director fees for all Directors for the year ended 31st December,
2008. Both Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon and Dr CHENG Hon Kwan attended
the meeting.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Bank's website: www.whbhk.com.

Nomination of Directors

The Director Nomination Committee of the Bank was formed in December
2002 with specific terms of reference and delegated with the duties which
include, amongst others, reviewing and making recommendation to the
Board for appointment of all new Directors, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief
Executive and Group Executives of the Bank. In reviewing and recommending
a candidate to the Board, members of the Director Nomination Committee
take into consideration, amongst other factors, the background, skills,
knowledge and experience of the candidate.

The terms of reference require that the Director Nomination Committee
shall comprise three Non-executive Directors. Currently, members of the
Director Nomination Committee are Dr CHENG Hon Kwan, Mr LAU Hon
Chuen Ambrose and Mr HO Chi Wai Louis. Dr CHENG Hon Kwan and Mr
LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose are Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr
HO Chi Wai Louis is a Non-executive Director. Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon, a
member and the Chairman of the Director Nomination Committee during
the year, passed away on 18th February, 2010. Mr LAU Hon Chuen Ambrose
was appointed as Chairman and Mr HO Chi Wai Louis was appointed as a
member of the Director Nomination Committee on 29th March, 2010.



FA EXRFZZECHAEARAERIERZES
fEBrian Gerard ROGAN%: & X Christopher Robert
STURDY.RARES - WRERTHEFSHAE -

EERAZEGZREEEHRNART 2B

www.whbhk.com °

EREES®

20096F N - RNRTTERZREZESREBZEEEME
¥ o BT E2009F1 A15HREFHEEZZE
SHREMBTEILETZEES /R @ BESE LA
BEZARZESMERF - A FFELEHB20095F3A
1I3HRBEAARITIVTESNEILETEZEZE
K8 - EF e /EZ T Christopher Robert
STURDY e A AEZEZE K E - 12009438 13H
EW e BREEERNEMABIIENTEFTEE
ST (R B ZETEE  URIZBENTES
Christopher Robert STURDY4E 4 42/ ©

ERZESRBW  BREE  YREEERE -
ZESEHENTES  WHBRE  BRABE

RARIT 2 RBENRITEE - ARA R wmALE
BoHMBRE XEBRARABRIMEEREE N
AR - RBRERE REGINITHE 2K - &'
BZZEEN2009FHEEREM  MARITERE
BREREERBRER  YiweERMAEENE
ZEHMERIEBIZEE BEREEQNEESR
BB 2009%F 7 A TR 2 B E T MR A B AR
RN ZER - ARTEALETERFRLR -

oo

EZEZEER2009F ERIT4RNEH - EEHB L
K ZEST A E 28 2% + Christopher Robert
STURDYSE AR IAEE - ARFTHEEBEB L A=
EEAER2009F N EZEEE 2 HHER  BER
EHEZESERFRNEBTZAENSE -

During the year, the Director Nomination Committee approved by written
resolutions the recommendation for appointment of Mr Brian Gerard ROGAN
and Mr Christopher Robert STURDY as Directors. Both appointments were
approved by the Board.

Terms of reference of the Director Nomination Committee are available
on the Bank’s website: www.whbhk.com.

Audit Committee

During the year 2009, there was a change in the composition of the Audit
Committee. With effect from 15th January, 2009, Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon
resigned as a member of the Audit Committee and ceased to be the Chairman
of the Committee, and Dr CHENG Hon Kwan was appointed as the new
Chairman. With the resignation of Mr Andrew Michael GORDON as a
Non-executive Director of the Bank on 13th March, 2009, he also ceased
to be a member of the Audit Committee. The Board approved the
appointment of Mr Christopher Robert STURDY as a member of the Audit
Committee on 13th March, 2009. The Audit Committee of the Bank currently
comprises two Independent Non-executive Directors namely Dr CHENG
Hon Kwan who acts as Chairman, and Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius, and one
Non-executive Director Mr Christopher Robert STURDY.

The Audit Committee of the Bank has clear terms of reference and is
accountable to the Board. Regular meetings of the Committee were held
with the presence of an Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer,
the Chief Internal Auditor and the external auditors to review and discuss
the financial performance of the Group, consider the nature and scope of
audit and the effectiveness of the system of internal control, risk management
and compliance. A meeting between the HKMA and the Audit Committee
members was held in 2009 for the purpose of exchanging views on the
major management and control issues of the Bank and discussing the
latest supervisory development and matters of concerns of HKMA. The
Committee also noted the requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
newly issued by HKMA in July 2009 on Internal Audit Functions that the
Bank had basically complied with.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held in the year 2009. Dr
CHENG Hon Kwan and Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius attended all the four
meetings, whilst Mr Christopher Robert STURDY attended one. With their
short period of membership in 2009, Dr LEE Kwok Yin Simon and Mr
Andrew Michael GORDON did not attend any meeting during the year.
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The work of the Audit Committee during 2009 included review and revision
of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee; review of the financial
results of the Wing Hang Bank Group for the year ended 31st December,
2008 and the annual results announcement; and review of the interim
results for the six months ended 30th June, 2009 and the interim results
announcement. The Committee also noted the review results presented
by the external auditors on the financial performance of the Group.

The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the revised Internal Audit
Charter, and the internal audit plan for 2010. The Committee also discussed
the audit coverage of and the audit support given to the overseas subsidiaries,
Wing Hang Bank (China) Limited in the PRC, and Banco Weng Hang in
Macau.

The Audit Committee monitored the external auditors’ independence,
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards. The Committee reviewed and approved the
appointment of external auditors and their remuneration for 2009. During
2009, there was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditors.

The Committee reviewed the work, findings and recommendations of
the internal auditors and the credit examination team of the Risk
Management Division of the Bank. The Committee also discussed findings
raised by the internal auditors, external auditors and the regulators, and
ensured that all recommendations were properly implemented. All matters
raised by the Audit Committee were duly addressed by the Executive Director.
In respect of internal control and risk management, the Committee also
reviewed the results of internal audit reports covering the independent
review and verification of the internal control self-assessment prepared
by the risk managers as documented in the Annual Review on Internal
Control Report.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including the
advice of external auditors and the support of Internal Audit Division, to
discharge its duties. During the year, no issues brought to the attention
of Management and the Board were of sufficient importance as to require
any disclosure in the Annual Report.

Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the Secretary of the
Committee, with a copy kept by the Company Secretary. Draft and final
versions of minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are sent to all members
of the Committee for their comment and records respectively, in both
cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Bank’s
website: www.whbhk.com.
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Delegation by the Board

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Director Nomination Committee
and Audit Committee described above, the Board has also set up an Executive
Committee to review and approve all major matters relating to the operation,
management and performance of the Group. The Executive Committee
has established other committees, such as the Credit Committee,
Management Committee and Asset and Liability Management Committee
to oversee the day-to-day operations of the Bank. All committees have
specific terms of reference in order to ensure that they will discharge
their functions properly and to report back to the Board, where appropriate,
their decisions and recommendations. Information of these committees
is set out below.

The Bank has formalised the functions reserved for the Board and those
delegated to management. The Bank reviews these arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Bank.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee meets regularly to review and approve all major
matters relating to the operations, management and performance of the
Group. It was granted powers and authorities necessary for conducting
and managing the Group’s normal banking and related business activities.
The Committee comprises the Chief Executive and two Executive Directors.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to formulate,
approve and implement loan policies, guidelines and credit practices of
the Group. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the Group’s credit risk management framework. It also participates in
evaluating large credit applications and making credit decisions. The
Committee comprises the Chief Executive, Group Executives, and heads
of Risk Management Division and Credit Administration Division.

Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to manage the affairs of
the Group encompassing all aspects including business, operational, strategy
and planning. The Committee comprises the Chief Executive, Group
Executives, Chief Financial Officer, head of Retail Banking Division, Chief
Information Officer and Chief Operations Officer.
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Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for the
implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management framework
relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, trading, funding and liquidity
risk management of the Group. It recommends policy and guidelines to
the Board for approval. The Committee comprises the Chief Executive,
Group Executives, Chief Financial Officer, and heads of Treasury Division,
Retail Banking Division, Risk Management Division and Financial Markets
Division.

Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and its
subsidiaries and for reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and for
ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the business
or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. Procedures have also
been designed to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to identify, control and
report on the major risks the Group faces. Risk management policies and
major risk control limits are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of risks
arising under their areas of responsibility and the management of such
risks in accordance with the Group’s risk management policies and
procedures. The relevant risk management reports are submitted to the
Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Audit Committee and the Board for monitoring
the respective risks.

More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management
of major risks the Group faces, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks as well as capital management, are included in note 38
to the financial statements.

A review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control system covering
all key controls, including financial, operational, compliance and risk
management controls, is conducted annually. The review at the end of
2009 was conducted with reference to the COSO (The Committee of
Sponsoring Organisations) internal control framework, which assesses the
Bank’s internal control system against the five elements, namely control
environment, risk assessment, control activities, information and
communication, and monitoring. The result has been reported to the Audit

Committee and the Board.
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Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank's internal control framework.
It monitors the effectiveness of internal control procedures and compliance
with policies and standards across all business and operational units.
Management is required to provide the internal audit function with written
confirmation that it has acted fully on all recommendations made by external
auditors and regulatory authorities. The internal audit function also advises
management on operational efficiency and other risk management issues.
The work of the internal audit function is focused on areas of greatest
risk to the Bank as determined by risk assessment. The Chief Internal
Auditor reports to the Chairman and the Audit Committee. Minutes of
Audit Committee meetings are submitted to the Board of Directors.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Preparation of

the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The statement of the Bank’s auditors about their responsibility
on the financial statements is included in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration
Details of auditors’ remuneration are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Communications with Shareholders

The Bank establishes and maintains different communication channels
with its shareholders through the publication of annual and interim reports,
circulars, notices and results of general meetings and press releases. Such
information is also available on the Bank’s website. Annual general meeting
is a valuable forum for the Board to communicate with the shareholders.
Chairman of the Board and Executive Directors, Chairman of Audit
Committee, Chairman of Director Nomination Committee and Chairman
of Remuneration Committee or members of such committees are available
at annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.

The Bank deviated from code provision E.1.3 which was effective from
1st January, 2009 requiring that notice of annual general meeting should
be sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.
The notice period given to shareholders for the annual general meeting
of the Bank held on 30th April, 2009 deviated from the code provision,
but fulfilled the requirement under the Articles, which requires an annual
general meeting be called by not less than 21 days notice in writing.

Hong Kong, 29th March, 2010
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As a well established financial institution in Hong Kong, we contribute to
the community through the provision of financial services to customers,
employment opportunities for the workforce and creation of value to
shareholders. We have been awarded the 5 Years Plus Caring Company
Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service recognising our efforts
over the years.

We believe that being a responsible business ensures our long-term success
as ethical and socially responsible practices earn respect and trust from
our customers, employees, business partners, shareholders and the public
and add value to our shareholders. We recognise that good corporate
citizenship reflects on our brand and values. Our Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR") commitments are integrated into our daily operations.

Business Practices

With an ever-changing business environment, the Bank’s CSR Committee
monitors closely the Bank’s corporate governance practices to ensure all
our activities are conducted with professionalism, the highest ethical and
compliance standards to meet the expectation of our stakeholders.
Compliance is every colleague’s responsibility and governs our daily
operations. We have on-going compliance training to uphold the Group’s
standard.

L LITIRT
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The Bank sponsored and supported The 21st Reading Carnival organised by the Hong

Kong Professional Teachers’ Union.

A4 XE8RT « 2000 FFH

KFELHRARRETREA S KR T ROKEBEERE -
The Bank’s volunteers visited the elderly during the Mid-Autumn Festival.
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The Bank invited Dr. Rebecca Lee, a prominent campaigner to conduct a seminar on envi-
ronmental protection with over 100 Environmental Protection Ambassadors from various

bank units attended.

Employees

Our success relies on the performance and commitment of all our employees,
and we believe they can thrive and excel in a supportive environment.
Aside from providing a safe and quality working environment, we also
encourage our employees to strike for a work-life balance. In 2009, the
Bank’s “
to Reach High” to cultivate a strong sense of social responsibility and
raise the importance of health, family, leisure and continuous learning

amongst our employees.

Employee Weeks" program adopted the theme of “Balance Well

Various recreational and outdoor activities were organised during the year
for our employees and their families. We also encourage employees to
serve the community by offering a Social Service Leave. In addition, we
recognise that employees may encounter personal problems in their daily
life. Our Employee Assistance Program provides a confidential and
professional counseling service on work related or personal problems.

Environment

We have integrated “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” in our daily business
operations. We encourage our employees to make efforts to save energy
and promote recycling. In August 2009, the Bank was awarded the “Class
of Good Wastewi$e Label” by the Environmental Campaign Committee
organised through Hong Kong Productivity Council.

To support HKSAR Government's Electric Car Promotion Campaign, the
Bank participated in the launch of MyCar, the first locally designed electric
car. The Financial Secretary and our Chairman were amongst the guests
of honour at the launch event on 23rd October, 2009. We were the first
bank to announce the introduction of a car financing scheme for electric
cars. We hope our attractive financing scheme will encourage the increasing
use of electric cars in Hong Kong, and help reduce air pollution.

ARITREMATHEMyCarlRtBENEE R I 28T - ARITEERETHRER -
The Bank was the first to introduce a vehicle financing scheme for MyCar, a home-grown
electric vehicle. Our Chairman received a complimentary car key for our support of the
event.
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dents from Grand-in-aid Brightens Children's Lives Charity Project.

AB  KZRT « 2000 FF R

The Bank also took part in the “Earth Hour” campaign sponsored by WWF
Hong Kong and “6.21 Dim it! Lights Out” campaign sponsored by Friends
of the Earth (HK).

Internally, we have accomplished the following environmental protection
initiatives in 2009:

o Reduced the use of A4 paper by 8 percent

° Increased return rate from 11 percent to 94 percent of used printer
cartridges/toners

o Reduced the use of plastic bags by 8 percent

o Made use of recycled paper to print name cards and forms
o Established wastepaper and computer recycle program
Communities

Donations and sponsorships

We recognise the importance of the next generation as a pillar of society.
Through the “V-are-One Program 2009" jointly organised with the Hong
Kong Professional Teachers’ Union, more than 1,500 school children in
26 schools received our financial support to participate in volunteer services.
Since 2006, the Bank has been sponsoring the “Grand-in-aid Brightens
Children’s Lives Charity Project” organised by St. James’ Settlement that
helps under-privileged students by providing them with school uniforms,
stationeries, books, and other learning materials.

AIFITHBARKFIRT (RE) ERATNEIFED R ERFTNEERE -
The Bank’s volunteers organised an outdoor trip to Noah's Ark in Ma Wan Park for stu- Volunteers from our subsidiary Wing Hang Bank (China) Ltd visited the under-privileged

children from Shenzhen Social Welfare Center.
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To foster the interest in reading among youngsters, the Bank sponsored
for the second year a Reading Carnival held in November 2009. The Bank
donated 18,000 gifts and more than 40 volunteers from the Bank also
participated in the event. We continue to support the Student Ticket Fund
of Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra as a Silver Patron, with the funding
used to subsidise students on discount tickets.

The Bank also supports the “People’s Food Bank” organised by St. James’
Settlement that provides food aid to support the disadvantaged.

Our Group donated HK$1,199,000 in 2009 to our communities.

Volunteer services

The Group is far from a mere sponsor, we are actively involved in volunteer
activities. Apart from direct donations to various charitable organisations,
our Volunteer Team provides volunteer services to various segments of
the society, including children, students, senior citizens, the disabled, low-
income group and single parent families. In Hong Kong, Wing Hang Bank
Volunteer Services Team is awarded the “Gold Award for Volunteer Service”
by the Social Welfare Department for 4 consecutive years. In 2009 our
Hong Kong volunteer team committed 11,696 community service hours
by 904 volunteers. Our volunteers represent about one third of our staff
in the Group.

REBE2009FHEM SEE2009FET
2009 Donation in Our Group 2009 Volunteers in Our Group
BIETFT HETAH
HK$ thousands No. of volunteers chE
P , ':P'?S'iﬂ" i Mainland China
Macau Mainland China Macau 56
213 131 128
s Tonak
g Kong
Hong Kong 904
855
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Awards
In 2009, the Bank received the following awards:

o 5 Years Plus “Caring Company” Logo awarded by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service

o “Class of Good Wastewi$e Label” awarded by Hong Kong Productivity
Council

o Gold Award for Volunteer Service from the Social Welfare Department

o Gold Award for Corporate and Employee Contribution Program from

the Community Chest

o Top 10 Fund-raisers for Dress Special Day organised by the Community
Chest for 15 consecutive years

o Champion of “Hike For Hospice 2009 hosted by Society for the
Promotion of Hospice Care

o Green Power Hike Bank Cup Champion organised by Green Power

o Champion of the “Sowers Action 10th Challenging 12 Hours 10
km Open Cup” organised by Sowers Action

Future

We are proud of our strong commitment in CSR, community involvement
and dedication of its staff to community work. Looking ahead, we continue
to identify opportunities to enhance our business practices from both
environmental and business perspectives. To spearhead this initiative, an
Environmental Protection Committee is set up to develop environmental
sustainability policies, and processes to minimise impact on the environment
from our daily activities. The Bank will continue to support various Non
Government Organisations and participate in voluntary work projects and
fund-raising activities.
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To the shareholders of Wing Hang Bank, Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited /iability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Hang
Bank, Limited (“the Bank") set out on pages 51 to 201, which comprise
the consolidated and the Bank balance sheets as at 31st December, 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures

WING HANG BANK * Annual Report 2009 4.9
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that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31st December,
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central Hong Kong

29th March, 2010
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HZE2009F 12 A31 HILFE
(LB FTIZIE - Satbrsh)

For the year ended 37st December, 2009
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

B 5

Notes 2009 2008
S A Interest income 5(a) 3,933,360 5,829,343
FEZH Interest expense 5(b) (1,473,356) (3,384,818)
EFAER PN Net interest income 2,460,004 2,444,525
H g ERA Other operating income 5(c) 860,403 966,204
BERBRRIEEAATERE Net (losses) / gains from trading and financial

mABmZERMIAZF instruments designated at fair value

(E518) = through profit or loss 5(d) (467,730) 373,949
FEF B A Non-interest income 392,673 1,340,153
=E LGN Operating income 2,852,677 3,784,678
BELH Operating expenses 5(f) (1,571,498) (1,560,670)
MBRIME R K R EBATE 505 F Operating profit before impairment losses and

allowances 1,281,179 2,224,008
BB EB R R EFHRRE Impairment losses and allowances charged

on loans and advances 18(e) (52,957) (444,466)
AHEEeMEE 2 REBAR Impairment losses and allowances released from /

EEE (R (charged on) available-for-sale financial assets 20(b) 75,053 (291,527)
R Operating profit 1,303,275 1,488,015
EHREMERLESFETEE  Netgains/ (losses) on revaluation of investment

23k (E518) properties and disposal of tangible fixed assets 6(a) 60,402 (17,109)
HEREZNHPALAEHEESA  Net gains on disposal of held-to-maturity and

BE 2 F W= available-for-sale financial assets 6(b) 31,770 47,396
FEEELE QR 2R (B51E) Share of net gains / (losses) of associated companies 22 38,434 (156,002)
B 2 A1 g ) Profit before taxation 1,433,881 1,362,300
A Taxation 7(a) (226,773) (201,128)
F P A Profit for the year 1,207,108 1,161,172
AIDET : Attributable to:

AERITRR R Equity shareholders of the Bank 8 1,204,665 1,161,916

DHIRRE = Minority interests 2,443 (744)
F A A Profit for the year 1,207,108 1,161,172
SRERN Earnings per share 12 HK$ HK$

AR Basic 4.08 3.94

B Diluted 4.05 3.90

FH7TEEE201 B 2 MEBER AP B REHN —2H - A
RITIREE TR 2 B FEPIRHIEES -

The notes on pages 57 to 201 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Bank are set

out in note 9.

WING HANG BANK * Annual Report2009 5]
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2009F 12 A31 HILFE
(LB F L2 - Satbrsh)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

Bt 3
Notes 2009 2008
F N F) Profit for the year 1,207,108 1,161,172
HEfh2E kR Other comprehensive income
— MR General reserve:
—MEBRARMBHRRZIER =5 — Exchange adjustments on translation of
financial statements of subsidiaries 270 (1,300)
RITITHL Bank premises:
— EHBRIEERIE 2 B RIT — Revaluation of bank premises transferred to
THEE AR E Y investment properties net of
deferred tax 1,392 4,563
—BHIRIEER IR 2 EEH R — Surplus on revaluation of bank premises
1Tik 2 Bk net of deferred tax 23 515,863 —
AftEESREAE Available-for-sale financial assets:
—TFASCRE) RRERZZ DT — Fair value changes taken to / (from) equity
—EBES — on debt securities 327,262 (379,597)
—KE — on equity securities 28,304 (685)
—®A(EE)GRERER — Transfer to / (from) consolidated
income statement
—EEESFREERKX — impairment losses on debt securities 20(b) — 280,456
—BREREBL — impairment losses on equity securities 20(b) — 11,071
—HR2008F 101 HEHHER — amortisation of previous revaluation losses on
HEZZHPAZAIHEESH available-for-sale financial assets reclassified
BENTEMH 2 EEEH as held-to-maturity on 1st October, 2008 30,207 9,734
—HE ks - gains on disposal 6(b) (40,737) (1,947)
—REFIE — Deferred taxes 7(d) (56,476) 12,867
FRKREE 2 H M2 EK Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 806,085 (64,838)
FRzE2HEMZ BT Total comprehensive income for the year 2,013,193 1,096,334
Al DT - Attributable to:
AERITAR R Equity shareholders of the Bank 2,010,750 1,097,078
D EIR R AE Minority interests 2,443 (744)
FRZEEWR=REE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,013,193 1,096,334
FLTEEF201 B 2B AT ERAM —E  The notes on pages 57 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R2009 ¢ 12 A31 H
(LB FTIZIE - Satbrsh)

As at 37st December, 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

B3
Notes 2009 2008

BE ASSETS
RE RIFHIRITRAZE - HRRIT Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Ko Hoth & RO M S RO other financial institutions 13 4,419,238 4,675,717
EEFHERITRIZEE « PRI|]ITR Placements with banks, central banks and other

H A& @B RIA financial institutions 14 7,319,182 23,847,351
2 5RE Trade bills 15 210,750 220,632
BEERSGEE Trading assets 16 2,750,691 1,748,373
EENRATFEBESAER SR Financial assets designated at fair value through

BE profit or loss 17 9,981,012 2,509,992
EFERREMEKE Advances to customers and other accounts 18(a) 82,430,921 81,367,674
HEZIHEEE Held-to-maturity investments 19 — 10,254,961
AftEE SR EE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 35,583,265 6,063,058
BN RIRE Investments in associated companies 22 203,095 189,751
BREEAE Tangible fixed assets 23

— By — Investment properties 272,835 242,400

—HA W - B RER — Other properties, plants and equipment 2,640,815 1,936,520
Bl Goodwill 24 1,306,430 1,306,430
AJ Yz 6] A< BR 5 1E Current tax recoverable 7(c) 2,267 3,304
RERIBE E Deferred tax assets 7(d) 3,617 34,277
BEE Total assets 147,124,118 134,400,440
BREZRERE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITRZE PRI|ITREMESH Deposits and balances of banks, central banks

B TF R and other financial institutions 25 831,700 308,994
BERFEMR Deposits from customers 26 126,182,778 115,168,340
BEBITERE Certificates of deposit issued 27 401,794 1,629,488
EEAZAR Trading liabilities 28 570,620 1,045,163
FEAT AR EATE 1R Current tax payable 7(c) 119,952 79,556
RERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 7(d) 294,506 166,316
HubAR1E R AEH Other accounts and provisions 29 1,644,996 1,596,433
‘EAR Subordinated liabilities 30 4,536,727 3,800,804
waf Total liabilities 134,583,073 123,795,094
N Share capital 32(a) 295,044 295,044
& Reserves 12,226,167 10,291,861
RRE S Shareholders’ funds 12,521,211 10,586,905
LERRE R Minority interests 19,834 18,441
IRERE R 4BRE Total equity 12,541,045 10,605,346
BRRERREE Total equity and liabilities 147,124,118 134,400,440
5 S5 EFRFITHER Patrick Y B FUNG Chairman and Chief Executive
ExRE HITEFRETTHAEH Frank ] WANG Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
IR HITEFFR B RABELE Michael Y S FUNG Executive Director and Senior General Manager
RiEE & C W LEUNG Secretary
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BERRE

Balance Sheet

R2009 ¢ 12 A31 H
(LBEF 2R - Satbrsh)

As at 37st December, 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

M E
Notes 2009 2008

BE ASSETS
RE RIFHIRITRAZE « BRRIT Cash and balances with banks, central banks and

Ko Hoh & RS SRR other financial institutions 13 1,816,334 2,612,807
EHFHERITRIZE - PRIBITR Placements with banks, central banks and other

E fth & B IR financial institutions 14 5,198,508 21,872,818
BHRE Trade bills 15 161,782 163,040
EERBEE Trading assets 16 2,757,774 1,751,795
EENAFEBEFAEBRZEM Financial assets designated at fair value through

BE profit or loss 17 9,981,012 2,509,992
EFPERRHARIE Advances to customers and other accounts 18(a) 49,733,181 46,631,805
JRE s B /BB 1 R SR IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 14,378,263 19,057,477
HBEZEPEEE Held-to-maturity investments 19 = 8,950,291
AftEE R EE Available-for-sale financial assets 20 34,001,943 5,857,508
HBAGERE Investments in subsidiaries 21 3,474,558 3,534,143
BN RN E Investments in associated companies 22 289,549 301,452
BEREEEE Tangible fixed assets 23

—H Mz - MR R E — Other properties, plants and equipment 1,493,747 1,162,311
(G Goodwill 24 847,422 847,422
AJ Yz B 2 BR B IE Current tax recoverable 7(c) — 794
REE Total assets 124,134,073 115,253,655
RREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITAZE  PRB|OREMESH Deposits and balances of banks, central banks

BT X and other financial institutions 25 411,030 184,479
BFEER Deposits from customers 26 99,113,596 91,703,799
BEBITERGE Certificates of deposit issued 27 401,794 1,529,488
EEALAE Trading liabilities 28 573,735 1,047,562
FERT AN HAR IR Current tax payable 7(c) 11,439 14,680
BIEMIABE Deferred tax liabilities 7(d) 172,027 62,207
HAh BRI )R 25 Other accounts and provisions 29 914,412 1,001,675
FE A B BB A R FRIB Amounts due to subsidiaries 8,470,101 8,140,806
‘EBRE Subordinated liabilities 30 4,536,727 3,800,804
Bafs Total liabilities 114,604,861 107,485,500
[N Share capital 32(a) 295,044 295,044
& Reserves 32(b) 9,234,168 7,473,111
H& SR M R BE Total equity 9,529,212 7,768,155
BERRERREE Total equity and liabilities 124,134,073 115,253,655
B 8RR, EERFITHAEH Patrick Y B FUNG Chairman and Chief Executive
ExRE HITEFRETTHAEH Frank J WANG Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive
B HITEFEFRER I Michael Y S FUNG Executive Director and Senior General Manager
REE wWE C W LEUNG Secretary

FHE7TEZEFE201 B 2T BEA A REK A — 3P
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2009F 12 A31 HILFE
(LB FTIT » Bathrsh)

For the year ended 37st December, 2009
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

2009
EE%E
tEz BHtkEZ BERZ
RAEER EERE =ERS ik ERZEE
Share  Dividends  Dividends ~ AFZEH 8N/ s
premium approved declared Shareof  (BR) &E Total
181888 under in respect inrespect  changes in Transfer  comprehensive 12 A 31 B&#
At Employee of the of the associated tof(from) income At
IstJanuary ~ Incentive Plan  previous year  current year companies reserve  for the year  31st December
(FrsEsm) (o) (HE9()
(Note 5(f)) (Note 9(b)) (Note 9(a))
R Share capital 295,044 - - - - - - 295,044
RARER Share premium 472,728 14,060 - - - - - 486,788
ERGE Capital reserve 227,346 - - - = 10,316 = 231,662
EERE Statutory reserve 117,880 - - - - 13,614 - 131,494
—REE General reserve 2,090,607 - - - - = 270 2,000,877
RO EHEE Bank premises revaluation reserve 295,687 - - - = = 517,255 812,942
RESfRE Investment revaluation reserve (101,086) - - - (1,991) - 288,560 185,483
RAEE Capital redemption reserve 769 - - - - - - 769
BRER Unappropriated profits 7,187,930 - (29504)  (59,009) - (23.930) 1204665 8,280,152
AR TARRS Attributable to equity shareholders
hEz#z of the Bank 10,586,905 14,060 (29,504) (59,009) (1,991) - 2,010,750 12,521,211
LERF R R Minority interests 18,441 - - (1,050) - - 2,443 19,834
RRERER Total equity 10,605,346 14,060 (29,504) (60,059) (1,991) — 2,013,193 12,541,045
2008
itélz Btk BERZ
BEAR  BREEER ZERE RERE FRZ2E
b RG] Share Dividends Dividends gr/ Wiz
pd () premium approved decared  (BE) ffE Total
TA1BER  Shares issued under in respect in respect Transfer comprehensive 12 A 31 B&#
At under Share Employee of the of the tof(from) income At
Ist January Option Scheme Incentive Plan  previous year ~ current year reserve  for the year 31st December
(ReE320a)))  (WsEs(h)  (Mstob)  (PHEF9G@)
(Note 32(a)fil) ~ (Note 5(fl)  (Note 9(bll  (Note 9lal)
BA Share capital 294,964 80 — — — — — 295,044
R E R Share premium 456,329 2,529 13,870 — - — — 412,728
EXGE Capital reserve 215,909 = = = = 11,437 = 227,346
EERE Statutory reserve — — — — — 117,880 = 117,880
—REE General reserve 2,091,907 - - - - - (1,300) 2,090,607
BAMLEREE Bank premises revaluation reserve 291,124 = = = = = 4,563 295,687
REERFEE Investment revaluation reserve (32,985) = = = = = (68,101)  (101,086)
RABEGE Capital redemption reserve 769 - = = = = = 769
BRER Unappropriated profits 7,167,334 - - (728760)  (283243)  (129317) 1161916 7,187,930
AR TFARES Attributable to equity shareholders
Wz #m of the Bank 10,485,351 2,609 13,870 (728,760) (283,243) — 1,097,078 10,586,905
LERFER Minority interests 22,685 - - - (3,500) = (744) 18,441
REERES Total equity 10,508,036 2,609 13,870 (728760)  (286,743) — 1,096,334 10,605,346
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HZE2009F 12 A31 HILFE
(LB F L2 - Satbrsh)

For the year ended 31st December, 2009

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

Bt 3
Notes 2009 2008
BETFHMAEZEESFE Net cash outflow from operating activities 35(a) (2,079,514) (2,279,626)
HEEE Investing activities
BASEEIHARIHEE Purchase of held-to-maturity and available-
ERMEE for-sale financial assets (20,651,038) (7,137,213)
EERBEFAEZINEBE RAIH# Sale and redemption of held-to-maturity and
HESMAE available-for-sale financial assets 5,678,647 12,111,948
e NEIRE Investment in an associated company 22 — (70,000)
HENRIERER Loans repaid by an associated company 22 11,903 22,436
BAMERFZE Purchase of properties and equipment (219,213) (273,442)
HEMERRE Sale of properties and equipment 38,891 1,986
REES M R L) mAZ Net cash (outflow) / inflow from investing
REFHH activities (15,140,810) 4,655,715
L& EED Financing activities
BITIRERAE Issue of subordinated liabilities — 1,721,975
BERERE Redemption of subordinated liabilities — (2,535,747)
TERRERMET ZHR Issue of new shares under Share Option Scheme  32(a)(i) — 2,609
SR E Dividends paid (88,513) (1,012,003)
MEARIKETLERRZRE Dividends paid to minority interests by
a subsidiary (1,050) (3,500)
YIHEEAGRA Interest paid on subordinated liabilities (353,905) (344,361)
A& EsmmnL 2 REe F5E Net cash outflow from financing activities (443,468) (2,171,027)
RBeRERESEE (D) 3N (Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (17,663,792) 205,062
ReRZERFSHEEMRIAT1HBES  Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January 28,708,108 28,500,507
EXEE w8 Effects of foreign exchange rate changes 3,227 2,539
ReRZERFSHEEMR12A31 A # Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 35(b) 11,047,543 28,708,108
ReERERBSER Z2HM Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
RERTFHIBITRZE « FRIBITK Cash and balances with banks, central banks
E fih & B IR and other financial institutions 4,112,666 4,477,287
RAHARR A3 A MBI H 2 EHITF R Placements with banks, central banks and other
RITEZE  PRI|FITREMESH financial institutions with an original maturity
BB R within three months 6,257,226 23,352,699
[RAERPR A3 A N BB 2 BT &% Treasury bills with an original maturity within
three months 677,651 878,122
11,047,543 28,708,108
FEAEEBETHESREEIE: Cash flows from operating activities included:
B U F & Interest received 3,885,335 6,087,041
[EERRAIESS Interest paid 1,534,395 3,454,333
B2 UK E Dividend received 8,097 6,994

FETEEFE 201 B ZMEBER AT BRKRN—FD -
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The notes on pages 57 to 201 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE2009F 12 A31 HILFE
(LB FTIZIE - Satbrsh)

1. TEXK
ARAREMBAT (REIAEE]) 2T S
KT AR 1 T A5 1 B TR AR TS

2. £E

(a)

BETEGR
GRECEIL T
AR BHRR MY - REBEEGH D

AEBELNMBEERNBEMBRESE
AN((ERMBREEN]) (EBEBCE
EREERNERNEEFEREER
BEGHE(TREG LR kA
B) BZEEEREMNSHRAIMEE
NEHRHIAER - R BHRRITTEE
BABMAXZMBRAREZ MR
(TERHRA) BBENBERE - AEE
RAMETESABREINAT -

BEGTENAGEM T E T HATMERE
RINMBERPERE LD - FLEAER
SEMARITE AN ST HEFRLER
H A IR RA - EABE LT MR
RINMBRYBREEN - WEIIBAK
% M A SR 1T A AN B S R BN R R PR
AOEFRRLRERES - HEAK
EEHNBEN - FERRNELHET
MBI R P 5| A FEMEF 5T
HENSAEREHE R ARBHRRA
R - BEEMFHRHTI4A

B mRmBER

HZE2009F12A31B It FEE 2478 817
BREBEABTREMNBRAGIRAER
JE(REE S N A 2 o mEARFERE

RNRERARAEER A TEE
RBBERAAFEERA H HEFHE

fREMT

- NBREBEME BEURFE
ERABEERAIHEE 2SR T
B (fEE2(07)Gi)

—  EBEME FE20K)

For the year ended 37st December, 2009
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

Principal activities
The Bank and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group”)
are engaged in commercial banking and related financial services.

Principal accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”), and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Bank. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs do not result in significant
changes to the Group’s and the Bank’s accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the year presented.
Note 4 provides information on the changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries and
the Group's interest in associated companies. The measurement
basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except that the following assets and
liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

—  financial instruments classified as trading, designated
at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-

sale (note 2(f)ii));

— investment property (note 2(k);

WING HANG BANK * Annual Report 2009 5/
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (conznued)
= other freehold land and buildings (note 2(k)); and

—  other leasehold land and buildings, for which the fair
values cannot be measured separately at the inception
of the lease and the entire lease is classified as finance
lease (notes 2(k) and 2(1)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 3.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
their activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries and minority interests (continuead)
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised profits
arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Bank, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries,
and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meet the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Bank. Minority interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
minority interests and the equity shareholders of the Bank.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, are charged against the Group’s
interest except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional investment to
cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits,
the Group's interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

In the Bank's balance sheet, its investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any (note 2(0)).

Associated companies

An associated company is an entity in which the Group or
Bank has significant influence, but not control, or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(d)

(e)

Associated companies (continued)

An investment in an associated company is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
associated company’s net assets and any impairment loss relating
to the investment (see notes 2(e) and 2(0)). The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax results of the associated
companies and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax results of the associated
companies’s other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the associated company,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Bank's balance sheet, its investments in associated
companies are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any
(note 2(0)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associated company over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating units, or groups of cash generating
units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment (note 2(0)).
In respect of associated companies, the carrying amount of
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the interest in
the associated companies and the investment as a whole is
tested for impairment whenever there is objective evidence
of impairment (see note 2(0)).

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an investment in
an associated company is recognised immediately in the income
statement.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(e)

(f)

Goodwill continuea)

On disposal of a cash generating unit, or an associated company
during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brand name
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Financial instruments

@

()

Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for
which the assets were acquired or the liabilities were
incurred. The categories are: fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price
plus, in case of a financial asset or financial liability not
held at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction
costs on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. A regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised using trade
date accounting. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are recognised using settlement date accounting.
From these dates, any gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded.

Classification

Fair value through profit or /oss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition,
but exclude those investments in equity instruments that
do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(f) Financial instruments (continueqd)

(i)

Classification (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
are accounted for as trading instruments.

The Group has the option to designate financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

—  the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated
and reported internally on a fair value basis;

—  the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

—  the asset or liability contains an embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required under the
contract;

—  or the separation of the embedded derivatives
from the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this category
are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair value are
included in the income statement in the period in which
they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or net payment and the
carrying value is included in the income statement.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq
(f)  Financial instruments (continued)
(1) Classification (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than (1) those that the Group
intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (2) those that the
Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or
(3) those where the Group may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-
sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and banks, and placements with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Securities classified as loans and receivables typically
comprise securities issued by the same customers with
whom the Group has a lending relationship that are
not quoted in an active market. Investment decisions
for credit substitute securities are subject to the same
credit approval processes as loans, and the Group bears
the same customer risk as it does for loans extended to
those customers. Additionally the yield and maturity
terms are generally directly negotiated by the Group
with the issuer. These securities include commercial paper,
short term debentures and preference shares issued by

the borrower.

Loans and receivables and securities classified as loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any

(note 2(0)).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity which the Group has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity, other than (1) those
that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as
at fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-
sale; and (2) those that meet the definition of loans

and receivables.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

()

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Classification (continuea)

Held-to-maturity investments (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less impairment
losses, if any (note 2(0)).

If, as a result of a change in intention or ability, it is no
longer appropriate to classify an investment as held-
to-maturity, it shall be reclassified as available-for-sale
and re-measured at fair value.

Avarlable-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in any of the other three categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time, but which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised in the income statement.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity securities are carried at cost less impairment losses,
if any (note 2(0)).

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are previously
recognised in other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to the income statement.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

()

Financial instruments (continued)

()

(i)

(i)

Classitication (continuea)

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without
any deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial
assets are priced at current bid prices, while financial
liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange
or a price from a broker / dealer for non-exchange-
traded financial instruments, or if the market for it is
not active, the fair value of the instrument is estimated
using valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate
of prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market
rate at the balance sheet date applicable for an instrument
with similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market data at
the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, have
been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

The Group uses the weighted average method to

determine realised gains and losses to be recognised in
profit or loss on derecognition.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

()

(9)

Financial instruments (continueqd)

()  Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

() Embedded derivatives
An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the
cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way
similar to a stand-alone derivative. The embedded
derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative when (1) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are
not closely related to the host contract; and (2) the hybrid
(combined) instrument is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host
contract is accounted for in accordance with note (ii)
above.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Assets sold subject to a simultaneous agreement to repurchase
these assets at a certain later date at a fixed price (repurchase
agreements) are retained in the financial statements and
measured in accordance with their original measurement
principles. The proceeds from the sale are reported as liabilities
and are carried at amortised cost.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase
agreements) are reported not as purchases of the assets, but
as receivables and are carried in the balance sheet at amortised
cost.

Interest earned on reverse repurchase agreements and interest
incurred on repurchase agreements are recognised as interest
income and interest expense respectively, over the life of each
agreement using the effective interest method.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(h)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised

in the income statement as follows:

7

()

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial
instruments is recognised in the income statement on
an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, call and similar options) but does not
consider future credit losses. The calculation includes
all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised
to the income statement over their expected life.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial assets
is discontinued, but any increase in the present value
of impaired financial assets due to the passage of time
is reported as interest income.

Fees and commission income

Fees and commission income is recognised in the income
statement when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer,
or is interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised
as income in the accounting period in which the costs
or risk is incurred and is accounted for as interest income.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(h) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii7)

(i)

7

Fees and commission income (continuea)

Origination or commitment fees received / paid by the
Group which result in the creation or acquisition of a
financial asset are deferred and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate. When a loan
commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down
of a loan, loan commitment fees are recognised on a
straight line basis over the commitment period.

Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase
contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase
payments is recognised as interest income over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of return on the outstanding net investment
in the leases for each accounting period. Contingent
rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned. Commission
paid to dealers for acquisition of finance lease loans or
hire purchase contracts is included in the carrying value
of the assets and amortised to the income statement
over the expected life of the lease as an adjustment to
interest income.

Rental income from operating lease

Rental income received under operating leases is
recognised as other operating income in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alterative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in the income statement
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the investment is
quoted ex-dividend.



2.

FE

(i)

S5EER &)

A BRi1E
ABRIBBIEEFEHTIEELERIE
BERBBZIER REERBERIELE
HEEERBEBEZEBRIRKERAL
i ENRREEMEEWGSSREERE
B ERNEBIEES - BIABERRS
REEMEE NS EEEEST R
%7\_]\0

RNEFE AT IE R IR A F S e R A E
DEEHE AWM TR EAMRZ B ERET
B RAEFEERSHEBEZERAE -

EXHRBAEERBERH TN EER
MzEREZRMESLS - MBHRRZ
BERABZEEMERRHERERE
Mz Z8 - EERBEENA KB RN
MZBBERERERZRIFES

RN YR ERmMEL 2B RERE
BE E-REATEZBER - ME
R IR A E R EE TR B A NS R SRR
B MFVR 2 BI T » J7 T IARER ©

BN AR RERAZEHARGEHEE
FENBMBEAERZHEGTH < &
EMIEEERABBAFERNRE B
EHRBEEREERAEEERRT - &
R B B 49 FE SR B A LA FH B 7% 40
B AIZERE RN A E ERR 8240
RERBAIEESEHNERDEN -
BEREEEED - Bk S mmEEN
EEMASHBEREXNHEBRENE
ERESL R RERR o

7R [ R B TR AR SR MR A A TR A AR K
HIBR, - ARBILIRME N - A
FENAEEREAFERBERE Rk
EXERAEERERERRAE  RE
REFTRAEEAE A EENARER
HMIREERHAFEVIRA BRI A&
17 o BERRE— R ELER BB
WRASET - A aEETTHRE -

2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

0]

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available,
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available. Additional income taxes that
arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities
if the Bank or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities. The
principle of offsetting usually applies to income tax levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

()]

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Hong
Kong dollars using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was determined.

The results of overseas operation are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the reserve.

On disposal of an overseas operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income statement when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(k)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

@

(i)

Bank premises that are held for the Group’s administrative
use are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued
amount, being their fair values at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation.
Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity by
professional qualified valuers, or at directors’ valuation
by reference to open market value to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which
would be determined using fair values at the balance
sheet date. Changes arising on the revaluation are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the bank premises
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to the income statement to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

—  when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to the income statement to the extent
that a deficit on revaluation in respect of that
same asset had previously been charged to the
income statement.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
are determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to the income statement.

Bank premises that are not held for the Group’s
administrative use are stated in the balance sheet at
cost or at directors’ valuation, by reference to an
independent professional valuation, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. In preparing these
financial statements, advantage has been taken of the
transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS
16, Property, plant and equjpment, issued by the HKICPA,
with the effect that bank premises that are not held for
administrative use have not been revalued to fair value
at the balance sheet date.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(k) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continuead)

() Equipment, comprising furniture, plant and other
equipment, is stated at cost less depreciation calculated
on a straight-line basis to write off the assets over their
estimated useful lives, which are generally between three

to ten years.

() No amortisation is provided on freehold land. Leasehold
land (note 2(I)) is amortised in equal annual instalments
over the remaining term of the lease. Buildings are
depreciated by equal instalments over the estimated
useful lives which in no case exceed fifty years.

() Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned and/or held under a leasehold interest (note
2(1)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use, which are stated in the balance sheet at
their open market values which are assessed annually
by professional qualified valuers. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of investments properties is recognised in the

income statement.

()  Finance and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form

of a lease.

(1) Cassification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

U]

Finance and operating leases (continued)

(1)

)

Finance /eases

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an
amount representing the net investment in the lease is
included in the balance sheet as “Advances to
. Hire purchase contracts having the
characteristics of finance leases are accounted for in
the same manner as finance leases. Impairment losses
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(0).

customers”

Operating leases

Where the Group leases out assets under operating leases,
the assets are included in the balance sheet according
to their nature and, where applicable, are depreciated
in accordance with the Group's depreciation policies,
as set out in note 2(k)(ii) except where the asset is classified
as an investment property. Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(0). Revenue arising from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with the Group'’s
revenue recognition policies, as set out in note 2(h)(iv).

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the income statement in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in the
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged
to the income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified
as an investment property (note 2(k)(iv)).
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(m)

(n)

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Group
may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the
borrowers. In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
set out in note 2(0), impairment allowances for impaired loans
and advances are maintained after taking into account the
net realisable value of the repossessed assets. Repossessed
assets continue to be treated as securities for loans and
advances. The Group does not hold the repossessed assets
for its own use.

Repossessed assets are recorded at the lower of their carrying
amount of the related loans and advances and fair value less
costs to sell at the date. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(1) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee to
customers, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
guarantee fees received) is initially recognised as deferred
income within other liabilities. Where the Bank issues a
financial guarantee to its subsidiaries, the fair value of
the guarantee is estimated and capitalised as the cost
of investment in subsidiaries and deferred income within
“Other accounts and provisions”.

The deferred income is amortised in the income statement
over the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(n)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (2) the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in other liabilities in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.
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2. Principal accounting policies (continved)

(n)

(o)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continuead)

(77)  Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or Bank has a legal or
constructive obligation, complaint or legal claim, arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amount of the Group's assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets
are impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events which has an impact on the future cash flows on
the assets that can be estimated reliably:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;
— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse

effect on the borrower;

—  disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(o)

Impairment of assets (continuea)
— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to
the income statement.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments,
which are measured at amortised cost, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment
losses are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that borrower / investment
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the income statement.

(1) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets). Receivables with a short
duration are not discounted if the effect of discounting
is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances, and
collective impairment allowances.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(o)

Impairment of assets (continuea)

7

Loans and recelvables (continuead)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that
are individually significant, and individually or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of
the cash flows which are expected to be received
discounted at the original effective interest rate. In
estimating these cash flows, management makes
judgments about the borrower’s financial situation and
the net realisable value of any underlying collateral or
guarantees in favour of the Group. Each impaired asset
is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order to
estimate the required allowance, the Group makes
assumptions both to define the way the Group models
inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current
economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Group
makes depends on how well the Group can estimate
future cash flows for individually assessed impairment
allowances and the model assumptions and parameters
used in determining collective impairment allowances.
While this necessarily involves judgment, the Group
believes that the impairment allowances on advances
to customers are reasonable and supportable.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(o) Impairment of assets (continuea)

7

(71)

Loans and recejvables (continuead)

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of
the expected future cash flows compared to the prior
estimates that can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, will result in a change
in the impairment allowances on loans and receivables
and be charged or credited to the income statement. A
reversal of impairment losses is limited to the loans and
receivables’ carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the
advances and the related interest receivables are written
off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Group has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to ongoing
monitoring to determine whether they remain impaired
or overdue.

Held-to-maturity investments

Impairment on held-to-maturity investments is considered
at both individual and collective level. The individual
impairment allowance is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
asset’s original effective interest rate, where the effect
of discounting is material.

All significant assets found not to be individually impaired
are then collectively assessed for any impairment that
has been incurred but not yet identified. Assets that
are not individually significant are then collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together financial
assets with similar risk characteristics.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement. A reversal of impairment losses shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq
(o) Impairment of assets (continuea)
1) Avarlable-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that
had been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to the income statement. The amount of
the cumulative loss that is recognised in the income
statement is the difference between the acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset
previously recognised in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that
are carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is material. Such

impairment losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised

in the income statement.

(i) Other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwiill, an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  tangible fixed assets (other than properties carried

at revalued amounts);

— investments in subsidiaries and associated

companies; and

—  goodwill.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(o)

Impairment of assets (continuea)

(1) Other assets (continued)
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less costs
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

—  Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq
(o) Impairment of assets (continuea)
(i) Other assets (continued)

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the income
statement in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.

() Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end

of the year (notes 2(0)(i) to 2(0)(iv)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill and available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the year to which the interim period relates.
Consequently, if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and not

the income statement.

(p) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(7)  the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint

control over the Group;

(77)  the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(777)  the party is an associated company of the Group;
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq

(p)

(a)

(r)

Related parties (continued)

(v)  the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

()  the party is a close family member of a party referred
to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

(vj)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Balances
of banks, central banks and other financial institutions that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash
flow statement.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continveq
(s) Employee benefits

1) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
to the Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered

by employees of the Group.

(77)  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Funds
Scheme Ordinance are recognised as an expense in the

income statement when incurred.

(717)  When the Group grants employees options to acquire
shares of the Bank, the considerations received are
recognised in the balance sheet as “Other accounts and
provisions” at the date of grant. The fair value of the
options is measured at the grant date and is charged
to the income statement and credited to shareholders’
funds between the grant date and the vesting date.
When the options are exercised, shareholders’ funds
are increased by the amount of the proceeds and

consideration received.

(7v)  When the Group grants employees awards to acquire
shares of the Bank under the Employee Incentive Plan
("EIP"). The fair value of the awards is measured at the
grant date and is charged to the income statement and
credited to shareholders’ funds between the grant date
and the vesting date. The cash amount equal to the
dividend that would have been paid during the period
up to vesting will be charged to the income statement

as bonus expenses on an accruals basis.
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Accounting estimates and judgements

Notes 23, 24, 39 and 40 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment property,
goodwill impairment, fair value of share options granted and fair
value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment losses

@

(i)

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any objective evidence that a
loan portfolio is impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease
in estimated future cash flows. Objective evidence for
impairment is described in accounting policy (note 2(0)).
If management has determined, based on their
judgement, that objective evidence of impairment exists,
expected future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those of the Group. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of the current
observable data. Management reviews the methodology
and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows
regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Avallable-for-sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value below cost. The
determination of when a decline in fair value below
cost is not recoverable within a reasonable time period
is judgmental by nature, so profit and loss could be
affected by differences in this judgement.

Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies
Certain critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies are described below:

)

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity and
where the Group has a positive intention and ability to
hold to maturity as held-to-maturity investments. In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments till maturity.
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3. Accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s

accounting policies (continued)

)

(1)

Hela-to-maturity investments (continued)

As the Group has changed its intention not to hold
these investments to maturity, the Group has reclassified
the entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments as
available-for-sale and such class is deemed to have been
tainted.

This has resulted in held-to-maturity investments being
measured at fair value instead of at amortised cost.

/nvestment property

The Group has temporarily sub-let certain vacant
properties but has decided not to treat the properties
as investment properties because it is not the Group’s
intention to hold the properties in the long-term for
capital appreciation or rental income. Accordingly, the
properties has still been treated as a building held for
own use.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are first effective for the

current accounting period of the Group and the Bank. Of these,

the following developments are relevant to the Group’s financial

statements:

— HKFRS 8, Operating segments

= HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial statements

—  Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
statements — cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly

controlled entity or associate

—  Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment — vesting

conditions and cancellations

— Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments. Disclosures

— Improving disclosures about financial instruments

= HK(IFRIC) 13, Customer loyalty programmes
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Changes in accounting policies (continved)

The amendment to HKFRS 2 has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial statements as the amendments were consistent
with policies already adopted by the Group.

HK(IFRIC) 13 addresses how reporting entities that grant their
customers loyalty awards credits (often called “points”) when buying
goods or services should account for their obligation to provide
free or discounted goods and services, if and when the customers
redeem the points. It requires reporting entities to allocate some of
the proceeds of the initial sale to the award credits and recognise
these proceeds as revenue only when they have fulfilled their
obligations to provide goods or services. The effect of the adoption
of HK(IFRIC) 13 was not considered to be material for the Group
and therefore, the prior year figures have not been restated.

The impact of the remainder of these developments on the financial
statements is as follows:

HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based on the way that
the Group’s chief operating decision maker regards and manages
the Group, with the amounts reported for each reportable segment
being the measures reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of assessing segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. This contrasts with the presentation
of segment information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the Group’s financial statements into segments
based on related products and services and on geographical areas.
The adoption of HKFRS 8 has resulted in the presentation of segment
information in a manner that is more consistent with internal reporting
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management, and
has resulted in additional reportable segments being identified and
presented (see note 36). As this is the first period in which the Group
has presented segment information in accordance with HKFRS 8,
additional explanation has been included in these financial statements
which explain the basis of preparation of the information.
Corresponding amounts have also been provided on a basis consistent
with the revised segment information.
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Changes in accounting policies (conzinuea)

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), details of
change in equity during the period arising from transactions with
equity shareholders in their capacity as such have been presented
separately from all other income and expenses in a revised consolidated
statement of changes in equity. All other items of income and expenses
are presented in the consolidated income statement, if they are
recognised as part of profit or loss for the period, or otherwise in a
new primary statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. The new format for the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity has been adopted in these financial statements and
corresponding amounts have been restated to conform to the new
presentation. This change in presentation has no effect on reported
profit or loss, total income and expenses or net assets for any period
presented.

As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS 7, the
financial statements include expanded disclosures in note 40(a) about
the fair value measurement of the Group’s financial instruments,
categorising these fair value measurements into a three-level fair
value hierarchy according to the extent to which they are based on
observable market data. The Group has taken advantage of the
transitional provisions set out in the amendments to HKFRS 7, under
which comparative information for the newly required disclosures
about the fair value measurements of financial instruments has not
been provided.

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the requirement that
dividends out of pre-acquisition profits should be recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment in the investee,
rather than as income. As a result, as from 1st January, 2009 all
dividends receivable from subsidiaries and associates, whether out
of pre- or post-acquisition profits, will be recognised in the Bank’s
profit or loss and the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee will not be reduced unless that carrying amount is assessed
to be impaired as a result of the investee declaring the dividend. In
such cases, in addition to recognising dividend income in profit or
loss, the Bank would recognise an impairment loss. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in the amendment, this new policy
will be applied prospectively to any dividends receivable in the current
or future periods and previous periods have not been restated.
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4. Changes in accounting policies (onzinuved

In addition to the above, with effect from 2009 the Group has also
changed its accounting policy from the cost to the fair value model
of accounting for bank premises held for administrative use. The
revaluation surplus net of tax of HK$515,863,000 and
HK$252,675,000 for the Group and the Bank respectively on the
bank premises held for administrative use at 31st December, 2009
have been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the bank premises revaluation reserve in accordance
with HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment.

& 2 A 5. Operating profit
(a) FEUWA (a) Interest income
2009 2008
FMBEWARE Interest income arising from:
—FURAFEEZABRZ — financial assets not measured at
TRLEE fair value through profit or loss 3,536,310 5,496,830
—BEERHBAE — trading assets 170,037 120,979
—EENARFEEFAER — financial assets designated at
ZEREE fair value through profit or loss 227,013 211,534
3,933,360 5,829,343
Hep of which:
— FREZAMEKA — interest income from listed
investments 375,646 409,940
—FLETEREZFSWA — interest income from unlisted
investments 600,185 685,433
—RESMEEZFERA — interest income from impaired
financial assets 14,048 10,918

NERBRESREEZFSKA B
JEHZE2009F12A31 B L FE 2 BEFRE
BT NEE E 2 F B A 7,206,0007T
(20084 : #&%6,115,0007T) (HfzE
18(e)) °
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The above interest income from impaired financial assets
includes interest income on unwinding of discount on loan
impairment loss of HK$7,206,000 (2008: HK$6,115,000) (note
18(e)) for the year ended 31st December, 2009.
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5. Operating profit continveq

(b) FEZH (b) Interest expense
2009 2008
MEZHRE Interest expense arising from:
—FURTFEEFABRZ — financial liabilities not measured at
CRIBE fair value through profit or loss 1,088,153 3,094,438
—BEERZAE — trading liabilities 190,678 61,634
—EBEUARFEEFAERE — financial liabilities designated at
ZemaE fair value through profit or loss 194,525 228,746
1,473,356 3,384,818
He : of which:
—ARSFEANEE BT — interest expense for certificates of
FAREMEZH deposit issued repayable
within 5 years 8,794 70,533
—BEPERZAEZH — interest expense for deposits
from customers 893,852 2,850,928
—RITRAIZE « PRIRBITR — interest expense for deposits and
Hiv BB ERZ balances of banks, central banks
A B and other financial institutions 4,066 47,956
—BEABRZAEXH — interest expense for subordinated
(P 5E35(a)) liabilities (note 35(a)) 353,905 344,361
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5. Operating profit continveq

(c) Other operating income

2009 2008
e =&k Fees and commission
ERAeRRBE Credit commission and fees 159,356 147,143
BERGEAEREE Credit card related fees 102,548 110,154
EHESRBE Trade related fees 56,839 80,813
REEBEE Insurance commission 63,187 60,492
BEBERSE Stockbroking fees 188,956 139,534
ErEIRTE & Trust fees 41 41
MEEERGEE Wealth management fees 11,741 79,994
HmRBEERASEA Other fees and commission income 135,175 151,164
W REBRAS I Less: Fees and commission expenses (56,247) (63,148)
661,596 706,187
HNE B & Wz (M E5(e) Gains arising from dealing in foreign
currencies (note 5(e)) 165,585 224,966
Hin B ZEE W= (T aE5(e)) Gains on other dealing activities (note 5(e)) 2,349 3,212
AMHEEELTEMEEZRE Dividend income from unlisted
A available-for-sale financial assets 6,963 4,870
AftEE FMemEEZREKA Dividend income from listed
available-for-sale financial assets 856 1,078
BEERAR EMREZREWA Dividend income from listed trading
investments 269 998
REMERSWAC R B Rental income from investment properties
2 758,000t (20084 : less direct outgoings of HK$758,000
75#829,0007T) (2008: HK$829,000) 10,858 11,885
H At Others 11,927 13,008
860,403 966,204
He of which:
FFEEERAGLIETURTF Net fees and commission, other than
BEFAEZZEMIA amounts included in determining
FRESE 2 R R E % the effective interest rate, arising
e BEAEERMNEZ from financial instruments that are
FRIEBR SN not held for trading nor designated
at fair value through profit and loss
- RBERASHA — fees and commission income 237,516 250,708
—RFEERAS N — fees and commission expenses 17) (27)
237,499 250,681
KFERIT » 2009 FFIR
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5. Operating profit continveq

(d) Net (losses)/ gains from trading and financial instruments

designated at fair value through profit or loss

2009 2008
EEAZSRIAZEERRRER Net realised and unrealised (losses) /
% (B518) Wz (M EE5(e)) gains on trading financial instruments
(note 5(e)) (157,098) 418,734
EEUATEEE BN SHIA Net realised and unrealised losses
EEER AT EES on financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss:
—BEeEsAEE(BER) WS — unrealised (losses) / gains on
subordinated liabilities (733,059) 1,048,153
EREREE D EERAEE — realised and unrealised gains / (losses)
Wz (E518) on collateralised debt obligations
("CDO") 68,975 (501,813)
— KB SR AT TR (T B — unrealised gains / (losses) on debt
TRERUZ S (BER) (F20(0b) securities issued by bank in Iceland
(note 20(b)) 23,885 (108,506)
—HMARMTAYEEERAEE — realised and unrealised gains / (losses)
Wk (E548) on other financial instruments 329,567 (482,619)
(310,632) (44,785)
(467,730) 373,949
(e) BBBEUWA (e) Net trading income
2009 2008
HNFE B B U 2s (M EE5(c) Gains arising from dealing in foreign
currencies (note 5(c)) 165,585 224,966
H B &% B (E5(0) Gains on other dealing activities (note 5(c)) 2,349 3,212
BEAYSRIECERRATE Net realised and unrealised (losses) / gains
% (B518) Uz (FE5(d)) on trading financial instruments
(note 5(d)) (157,098) 418,734
10,836 646,912
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5. Operating pTOﬁt (continued)

(f) =EHEXH (f) Operating expenses
2009 2008
B B A A Staff costs
e RHAMESKA Salaries and other staff costs 831,347 845,235
BRE KA (B 5E39(a)) Retirement benefit costs (note 39(a)) 33,189 59,921
EERBE - REZATEE EIP — fair value of awards (note 35(a)) 14,060 13,870
(Kt 5E35(a))
& 8 @58l — TE4T EIP — bonus 659 7,529
879,255 926,555
TEEFEZITURBFES W Premises and equipment expenses,
excluding depreciation 183,561 171,245
& (M523 % 35(a) Depreciation (notes 23 & 35(a)) 127,157 104,895
1% E0AD & A Auditors’ remuneration
HIZR Audit services 4,520 4,469
T4 7% AR 75 Tax services 901 595
HAtb R 75 Other services 1,441 1,731
6,862 6,795
Efh Others 374,663 351,180
1,571,498 1,560,670
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6.

(a)

(b)

EMBREVERHERTLEEEEZR
Wz (EE)

6. (a) Net gains / (losses) on revaluation of investment
properties and disposal of tangible fixed assets

2009 2008
BEEBEMEZARERW (BE) Unrealised revaluation gains / (losses) of
investment properties 34,785 (14,773)
HEAFKEEEE 2 FRE (EE) Net gains / (losses) on disposal of
tangible fixed assets 25,617 (2,336)
60,402 (17,109)

HEREZIMARAIHEESMERE
e &

HERBZINHERE F (BB
Yz

HEREERABHFEHIAER
F U as

(b) Net gains on disposal of held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale financial assets

2009 2008

Net (losses) / gains on disposal of

held-to-maturity investments (5,813) 3,536
Net unrealised gains transferred from

investment revaluation reserve

upon disposal 40,737 1,947

LEHHEESREEZF (BB Net (losses) / gains on disposal of
Wz available-for-sale financial assets (3,154) 41,913
31,770 47,396
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7. BiIE 7. Taxation
(a) HFEWBZETRAZFKES (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
2009 2008
REATRIE — BB G EE Current tax — Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax
INF[E A Provision for the year 189,029 193,527
TFEFEEBART Overprovision in respect of prior years (20,931) (49,944)
168,098 143,583
RNEABIIE — BN TH 2R Current tax — Provision for overseas tax
NG ] Provision for the year 66,830 81,814
FEFEEE BR) TR (Over) / under-provision in respect
of prior years (6,528) 7,769
60,302 89,583
ERET IR Deferred taxation
TRt EREERED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (1,627) (20,135)
HEEgH1A1REL Effect on deferred tax balances at
MR 2 B 1st January resulting from a change
in tax rate — (11,903)
(1,627) (32,038)
226,773 201,128

2009F E B BF S HEE IR AN S E AR
FEMAFTERT RN BIRITHE16.5%
(20084 : 16.5%) 5T & ° BINHIBAER
BEAEE BB EMEETERRIET
PEE -
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The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2009 is calculated
at 16.5% (2008: 16.5%) of the Group's estimated assessable
profits for the year. The provision for overseas taxation is
provided at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
the countries in which the relevant units of the Group operate.



7.

BIE @)

(b)

7. Taxation (continued)

BMEZHREABRARE ST (b) Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting
iR profit at applicable tax rates:
2009 2008
% %
4 7 A1 g A Profit before tax 1,433,881 100.00 1,362,300 100.00
EEBEZEAR Notional tax on profit before tax,
R ESERBA calculated at the rates applicable
M 2 B E IR to profits in the countries
concerned 241,676 16.85 215,232 15.80
AT 1k B 32 2 R Tax effect of non-deductible
B2 expenses 15,427 1.08 39,972 2.93
FERERT W 28 2 X Tax effect of non-taxable
B E revenue (21,077) (1.47) (9,808) (0.72)
RERZKRERB Tax effect of unused tax losses
BrHBERE not recognised 28 — 513 0.04
HEEEH1/18 Effect on deferred tax balances
RIEFIBA R 2 at 1st January resulting from a
- change in tax rate — = (11,903) (0.87)
TEFEERBE Overprovision in respect of prior
years (27,459) (1.92) (42,175) (3.10)
EAh Others 18,178 1.27 9,297 0.68
226,773 15.81 201,128 14.76
AU @ K2 B A 2 AN B B 1 (c) Current tax recoverable and payable

BEBBRAZ D K EN AR

The components of current tax recoverable and payable in

ZHEKFEOHWET the balance sheets are as follows:
XFRITEH KFRAT
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
AT U Bl AR B R IR Current tax recoverable
BEENGHER Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 2,267 2,510 — —
NG TR 24 Provision for overseas tax — 794 — 794
2,267 3,304 — 794
JE - AR B IH Current tax payable
BEBNGHER Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 176,179 192,386 63,293 131,373
EHAEH Provisional profits tax paid (100,961) (176,760) (55,922) (126,785)
75,218 15,626 7.371 4,588
TN TH A1 Provision for overseas tax 44,734 63,930 4,068 10,092
119,952 79,556 11,439 14,680

P m & A A BT IR TR B 1 F

=
NAEE °

All current tax recoverable and payable are expected to be
settled within one year.
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7. BIE(®) 7.

(d) EERAZELEHRESEERAEE
FAREEBBERABR 2 ELERIE
(BE) /BB ZHERIH REESH0

Taxation (continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
The components of deferred tax (assets) / liabilities recognised
in the balance sheets and the movements during the year are

T~ as follows:
XFRITEE
The Group
2009
RBEH BREAH
ik HEZ BRZER
REEHRE SREE HEER
Depreciation Revaluation  Collective
allowances of available-  impairment
inexcessof  EfENE for-sale  allowances
related  Revaluation  financial forloansand — FAEEE Ao At
depreciation of properties assets  advances  Tax losses Others Total
1A1B4&% At 1st January 115,785 80,960 (20,471) (25,302) (3,308) (15,625) 132,039
GARERR (RE) /W% (Credited) /charged to
consolidated income
statement (39,088) 5,250 - 35,375 751 (3,915) (1,627)
FREAKER Charged to reserves — 104,001 56,476 - - — 160477
12A318 &% At 31t December 76,697 190,211 36,005 10,073 (2557)  (19,540) 290,889
XFRITEE
The Group
2008
RBEH BREAH
ik d HEZ ENCER
HEEHE SREE  HEER
Depreciation Revaluation  Collective
allowances of available-  impairment
inexcessof  EfiME forsale  allowances
related  Revaluation  financial forloansand — FAEEE A At
depreciation  of properties assets  advances  Tax losses Others Total
TA1R&# At 1st January 116,241 87,609 (7,604) (8,759) (3,155) (2,825) 181,507
GRNRERNRE Credited to consolidated
income statement (456) (2,086) — (16,543) (153) (12,800) (32,038)
EE AR Credited to reserves = (4563)  (12,867) = = = (17,430)
12A318 &% At 31t December 115,785 80,960 20471)  (25302) (3308)  (15625) 132,039
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BE @)

7. Taxation (continued)

(d) EERZIELEHRIEE 3 & (&) (d) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continuead)
K7 RIT
The Bank
2009
BBREH
nEZ BEAH BN EE
HERHE HEZ HEER
Depreciation PREE Collective
allowances Revaluation of impairment
in excess of ERY)ES available-for- allowances
related Revaluation sale financial for loans and Rt
depreciation of properties assets advances Total
TRA1B &8 At st January 38,426 62,845 (20,681) (18,383) 62,207
Wess R e (1R#) Charged / (credited)
to income statement (3,017) — - 8,018 5,001
& 18 M BR Charged to reserves - 49,540 55,279 - 104,819
12A31B#&% At 31st December 35,409 112,385 34,598 (10,365) 172,027
K7 HRIT
The Bank
2008
BEEH
ik B EREE
TEEHE HEZ HEER
Depreciation tHEE Collective
allowances Revaluation of impairment
in excess of BitE available-for- allowances
related Revaluation sale financial for loans and CH)
depreciation of properties assets advances Total
1A1B#&% At 1st January 27,163 66,971 (7,904) (15,131) 71,099
Yas &AMk (%) Charged / (credited)
to income statement 11,263 — — (3,252) 8,011
[ B P IR B Credited to reserves - (4,126) (12,777) — (16,903)
12A31B#&# At 31st December 38,426 62,845 (20,681) (18,383) 62,207
XFRITEE XFHRIT
The Group The Bank
2009 2008 2009 2008
NREEBERANER Net deferred tax assets recognised
IR RERIBEE on the balance sheets (3,617) (34,277) — —
NEEBERANER Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
TIREERIIEA & on the balance sheets 294,506 166,316 172,027 62,207
290,889 132,039 172,027 62,207
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2SR 1T IR R FE 4 2 3% A

RBTREEBGEZZAN PG ESE
1,302,702,0007T (20084 : #&#1,140,515,000
T0) RANERIT 2 B sR R AR

ARERTTE R B 2k B K B T AR R 2 AR BRI
BEE9 ©

RS
(a) AFERE

$295,044,380/% (20084 :
295,044,3800%) 2 L @R E -
B E M RIKE 2 HR S
BB 0.207T (20084 : ##0.967T)
REFFZRERE

1295,044,380% (20084 :
295,044,3800%) 2 L@k E -
EHERERIR 2 KBRS
FALE0.507T (20084 : ##0.107T)

8. Profit attributable to the shareholders of the

Bank

The profit attributable to the shareholders of the Bank includes an
amount of HK$1,302,702,000 (2008: HK$1,140,515,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank.

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of the
Bank are set out in note 9.

9. Dividends
(a) Dividends attributable to the year

2009 2008

Interim dividend declared and paid of

HK$0.20 (2008: HK$0.96) per

ordinary share on 295,044,380 shares

(2008: 295,044,380 shares) 59,009 283,243
Underprovision of final dividend in

respect of the prior year — 198
Final dividend proposed after the

balance sheet date of HK$0.50

(2008: HK$0.10) per ordinary

share on 295,044,380 shares

(2008: 295,044,380 shares) 147,522 29,504

206,531 312,945

ERERRRBIK 2 RERE - AR
BEREARARE -

(b) MEAMERKEZEZFEERE

1%295,044,380/% (20084 :
295,044,3800%) 2 L@kt & -
RERRERIRE 2 FFREARE
FHAERE0.107T (20084 : B#2.477T)

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as a liab